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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
EEE KM

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to report the financial results, operations and other
aspects of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

This report is presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is
the same as the functional currency of the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$555,386,000 (2015: HK$102,490,000) and the
Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$333,064,000 (2015:
loss of HK$149,838,000), the basic and diluted earnings per
share were HK9.40 cents and HK2.18 cents respectively (2015:
basic and diluted loss per share were HK5.33 cents).

As at 31 December 2016, the consolidated net assets of the
Group were approximately HK$4,081,069,000 (31 December
2015: HK$4,135,352,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and during the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group was principally
engaged in the business of operation of peer-to-peer (“P2P")
financing platform and other loan facilitation services, money
lending and provision of credit, securities investments, provision
of corporate secretarial and consultancy services (disposed during
the year) and forestry business (disposed during the year).
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Operation of P2P Financing Platform and Other Loan

Facilitation Services Business

On 20 October 2015, the Company completed the acquisition
(the "P2P Acquisition”) of 96% of the issued share capital of
Katar Global Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Katar Global
Group”) from Allied Summit Inc., the controlling shareholder of
the Company, at the consideration of HK$2,400 million (the
“Consideration”), satisfied by the way of issuance of non-
redeemable convertible notes of the Company in the principal
amount of HK$2,400 million (the “Convertible Notes"). Since
then, the Group, through the Katar Global Group and relevant
structured contracts (the “Structured Contracts”), is principally
engaged in the operation of a P2P online financing platform in
the PRC, matching borrowers with private lenders for various
financial products through the internet under the “CAIJIA” brand,
which is conducted via the website (www.91caijia.com) (the
“Caijia Website") and other loan facilitation services. Details of
the P2P Acquisition have been disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 10 July 2015, 16 October 2015 and 20
October 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 29
September 2015 (the “Circular”). During the year ended 31
December 2016, a segment revenue of approximately
HK$490,662,000 (2015: HK$34,740,000) and a segment profit of
approximately HK$390,504,000 (2015: HK$3,810,000)
recorded. The increase in segment revenue and profit was
primarily due to the increase in provision of other loan facilitation
services during the year ended 31 December 2016.

were

As disclosed in the Circular, Allied Summit Inc., has irrevocably
and unconditionally guaranteed to the Company (the “Profit
Guarantee”) that the audited consolidated profit before tax of the
Katar Global Group (excluding any extraordinary items) for each of
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 shall
not be less than the amount (the “Guaranteed Profit(s)”) set
opposite to the relevant guaranteed periods (the “Guaranteed
Period(s)”) as defined in the table below:

Guaranteed Profit:
HK$100,000,000

Guaranteed Period:
1 January 2015-31 December 2015

1 January 2016—-31 December 2016 HK$350,000,000

If the aggregate actual audited consolidated profit before tax of
the Katar Global Group (excluding any extraordinary items) for any
of the Guaranteed Periods shall be less than the relevant
Guaranteed Profits, the Consideration shall be reduced
accordingly.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
T EE

The audited consolidated profit before tax of the Katar Global
Group (excluding any extraordinary items) for each of the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 as shown in the audited
accounts of the Katar Global Group prepared by Company's
auditor amounted to approximately HK$103,140,000 and
HK$398,930,000 respectively and hence the Guaranteed Profits
for the Guaranteed Periods have been met. As the P2P
Acquisition was completed on 20 October 2015, only less than
three months of the results of the Katar Global Group were
reflected in the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Accordingly, the Convertible Notes retained by the Company as
security of the Profit Guarantee (the “Retained Convertible
Notes”) in the principal amount of HK$266,670,000 for the
Guaranteed Period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
and in the principal amount of HK$933,330,000 for the
Guaranteed Period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016
have been released to Allied Summit Inc. on 20 April 2016 and
16 March 2017 respectively. The Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that the
release of the Retained Convertible Notes in the principal amount
of HK$1,200,000,000 is made in accordance with the terms of
the sale and purchase agreement of the P2P Acquisition.

Please refer to the Circular for the details of the Profit Guarantee
and adjustment to the Consideration and the announcements of
the Company dated 21 April 2016 and 16 March 2017 for the
details of the release of the Retained Convertible Notes.

Money Lending and Provision of Credit Business

Since obtaining the money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in
2011, Joy Wealth Finance Limited (“Joy Wealth”),
owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided a wide variety of
loans with an accumulated amount of approximately HK$2,267
million (2015: HK$1,730 million). Interest rates ranged from
10%—-36% per annum during the current year (2015: 10%—-36%).
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the interest income
recorded by Joy Wealth was approximately HK$62,256,000
(2015: HK$66,457,000) whereas there was no reversal of
impairment (2015: reversal of HK$12,690,000) on the loan and
interest receivables. Details on the loan and interest receivables
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

a wholly-
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Securities Investments Business

As at 31 December 2016, the Group was holding several
investments which are equity securities listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for long
term investment. For the year ended 31 December 2016, these
investments in the listed securities led to a net fair value loss of
approximately HK$368,508,000 (2015: net fair value gain of
HK$424,785,000) recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income while there was a net gain on disposal of
approximately HK$30,189,000 (2015: HK$5,550,000) recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Significant
investments in listed securities are discussed as below.

Investment in shares of Imperial Pacific

The major balance of the aforesaid listed securities represented
the Group’s investment in 5,426,900,000 shares of Imperial
Pacific International Holdings Limited (a company whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 1076)
(“Imperial Pacific”), representing approximately 3.8% of the
issued share capital of Imperial Pacific as at 31 December 2016.
Imperial Pacific, through its subsidiaries, is mainly engaged in (i)
gaming and resort business, including the development and
operation of integrated resort on the Island of Saipan; and (ii)
processing and trading of food products which mainly include
frozen and functional food products (which ceased and was
discontinued on 26 May 2016).

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the shares of Imperial
Pacific held by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$575,251,000 (31 December 2015: HK$917,146,000),
representing 80.1% (31 December 2015: 81.4%) of the Group's
total investment in listed securities. No disposal nor addition of
shares of Imperial Pacific was noted during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: 13,100,000 shares were disposed of with
gain of approximately HK$3,885,000 recognised). The net fair
loss recognised as other comprehensive loss for the
investment in shares of Imperial Pacific during the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$341,895,000 (2015: net
fair value gain of HK$346,131,000).

value
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Investment in shares of Huarong Int Fin

The Group also held 36,786,000 shares of Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited (a company whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 993) (“Huarong Int Fin"),
representing approximately 1.1% of the issued share capital of
Huarong Int Fin as at 31 December 2016. Huarong Int Fin,
through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in securities,
futures and options contracts brokerage, provision of margin
financing, corporate finance and asset management services and
direct investment in equities, bonds, funds, derivative
instruments and other financial products.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the shares of Huarong
Int Fin held by the Group amounted to approximately
HK$112,197,000 (31 December 2015: HK$181,142,000),
representing 15.6% (31 December 2015: 16.1%) of the Group's
total investment in listed securities. During the year ended 31
December 2016, investment in shares of Huarong Int Fin brought
a net fair value loss of approximately HK$30,096,000 recognised
as other comprehensive loss (2015: net fair value gain of
HK$77,019,000) and a gain of approximately HK$30,189,000
(2015: HK$2,682,000) from disposal of 24,000,000 shares of
Huarong Int Fin (2015: 1,964,000 shares) recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss. There was no dividend
income received for investment in Huarong Int Fin during the
current year (2015: HK$47,815,000).

Provision of Corporate Secretarial and Consultancy
Services Business

Pacific Vision Advisory Services Limited (“Pacific Vision"), a then
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was engaged in the
provision of corporate secretarial and consultancy services
business. Due to keen competition for corporate secretarial and
consultancy services, such business segment has
underperformed and recorded continuous losses for the past
years. Thus, the Group realised this business by selling Pacific
Vision during the year and reallocated its internal resources from
this segment to other promising business segments of the
Group, such as the P2P financing platform and other loan
facilitation services business and money lending and provision of
credit business. During the year ended 31 December 2016, a
segment revenue of approximately HK$350,000 (2015:
HK$1,293,000) and a segment loss of approximately
HK$1,376,000 (2015: HK$3,823,000) had been recorded.
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Forestry Business

On 12 April 2012, the Group acquired 30% of the entire issued
share capital of Profit Grand Enterprises Limited (“Profit
Grand”), which through its subsidiary has the logging rights
within a forest sized approximately 65,800 hectares in the
Independent State of Papua New Guinea (the “PNG"). Certain
approvals, licenses, registrations, confirmations and/or permits
are required under the laws and regulations of the PNG (the
"Official Approvals”) in order for the Group to conduct forestry
related business and to enjoy logging concession right in the
PNG. During the year, in the view that it was highly uncertain
when the Official Approvals could be obtained from the relevant
government authorities, the Group sold all of its interest in Profit
Grand in order to avoid further loss.

OUTLOOK

Operation of P2P Financing Platform and Other Loan
Facilitation Services Business

Despite the satisfactory segment results for the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group is of the view that the strong profit-
making ability of this segment may or may not be sustainable in
the future as the P2P lending industry is on the consolidation
phase and according to publicly available information, several P2P
financing platforms were shut down due to high default rate on
loans, which has adversely affected the confidence of potential
lenders. Also, the number of P2P financing platforms is
decreasing after implementation of strict rules on P2P lending
industry by the PRC government with its efforts in reforming the
financial system. The Group believes that maintaining and
enhancing the “CAIJIA” brand as well as modifying existing
business model are critical to its competitive advantage and for it
to maintain or gain market share. Thus, the Group has
strengthened its credit assessment and due diligence procedures
on potential borrowers under the P2P loan facilitation services
business in order to reduce loan default risks and to ensure high-
quality loans. Moreover, in order to maintain profitability in this
segment, the Group would continue developing the business of
provision of other loan facilitation services, which has been
generating satisfactory income to the Group.
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Adoption of the Revised Business Model

As set out in the Circular, the Company shall, within 3 months
after completion of the P2P Acquisition, look for acquisition
opportunities of foreign companies principally engaged in
e-commerce related business with track records and if the Group
is able to identify and complete such acquisition, the Group can
immediately obtain sufficient foreign experiences to achieve the
qualification requirement under the State Council promulgated
Regulations for the Administration of Foreign-invested
Telecommunications Enterprises (the “Qualification
Requirement”) and then initiate the process of unwinding the
Structured Contracts.

However, if the Company is not able to identify any suitable
acquisition targets, it shall consider either (i) to establish
e-commerce related business overseas by itself to gain foreign
e-commerce experiences; or (i) consider modifying the business
model of the Katar Global Group such that reliance on the P2P
online financing platform is reduced and expanding the
businesses outside of the PRC. In this regard, since the
completion of the P2P Acquisition, the Group has been making
effort to meet the Qualification Requirement by adding some
e-commerce elements in the existing finance business of the
Group by setting up a website for Joy Wealth at
www.joywealth.com.hk, and through such website, Joy Wealth
will accept applications from borrowers online. Also, the
Company has also been in contact with agents who have
business relationships with owners of certain existing
e-commerce related business. However, no suitable target has
been identified since completion of the P2P Acquisition. As an
alternative, the Company plans and intends to adopt a revised
business model in order to reduce its reliance on, and henceforth
the risks associated with the adoption of, the Structured
Contracts in the operation of the P2P financing platform (the
“Revised Business Model").
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Under the Revised Business Model, online matching services
now provided through the Caijia Website will be outsourced to
third party independent internet content provider licensees (the
“ICP OPCO(s)"”) in such a way that (i) the ICP OPCO(s) will be
responsible for establishing, operating and administering a
branded website/webpage under the “CAIJIA” trademark of the
Group for providing the online matching services; (i) the ICP
OPCO(s) will be paid a fee in return for the provision of the
online matching services through the branded website/webpage;
(iii) the relationship between the Group and each ICP OPCO will
be a simple contractual one that existed between the parties to
an ordinary online cooperation agreement; and (iv) the Company
will not seek to own or control, whether directly or indirectly, any
part of the business or economic interests of the ICP OPCO(s)
through any contractual arrangements same as or similar to
those of the Structured Contracts. It follows that the economic
interests and results of the ICP OPCO(s) will not be consolidated
into the financial statements of the Group. The Revised Business
Model does not involve any dissipation or disposal of any assets
or interests in the Katar Global Group. All the revenue generating
assets and entities critical to the operation of P2P financing
platform will remain under the ownership, control and
management of the Group. Details of the Revised Business
Model have been set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 5 January 2017.

It is the Group's plan to enter into cooperation agreement(s) of
similar terms with third party independent ICP OPCOs as and
when appropriate. As at the date of this report, the Group has
not entered into any cooperation agreement.

Money Lending and Provision of Credit Business
Money lending and provision of credit business will continue to
be one of the major business segments of the Group and
contribute stable interest income to the Group. The Group will
further develop this business segment, diversify the customer
portfolio and seek new opportunities to cooperate with its
business partners.
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Securities Investments Business

Based on the satisfactory results achieved from the investments
in shares of Imperial Pacific and Huarong Int Fin since their
acquisitions and the continual development of Imperial Pacific’'s
and Huarong Int Fin's principal activities, the Directors expected
the investments in shares of Imperial Pacific and Huarong Int Fin
will have positive returns to the Company in the future.

Moreover, as part of its routine exercise, the Company reviews
the performance of its existing investment portfolio and
evaluating the investment potentials of other investment
opportunities available to the Company. Subject to the results of
such reviews, the Company may make suitable investment
decisions according to the then circumstance and information
available which may involve the disposal of the whole or part of
its existing investment portfolio and/or the change of the
components and/or the asset allocation of its investment portfolio
and/or broadening and diversifying its investment portfolio with a
view of realising and/or optimising the expected return and
minimising the risks.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The operation of P2P financing platform and other loan facilitation
services business and the money lending and provision of credit
business are two of the principal activities of the Group and they
expose to a number of risks and uncertainties including interest
rate risk, equity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of
the aforesaid principal risks and risk management are set in note
34 "Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the
financial statements.

Besides, the slowdown of China’s economic growth may
adversely affect the operation of the P2P financing platform and
other loan facilitation services business and the money lending
and provision of credit business. The volatile and unpredictable
stock market in Hong Kong also raises uncertainty on the
Group’s returns from the securities investment business.

Specifically for the operation of P2P financing platform and other
loan facilitation services business, the market awareness and
reputation of the “CAIJIA" brand have contributed significantly to
the success and growth of its business. The Board also believes
that maintaining and enhancing the “CAIJIA" brand is critical to
maintaining its competitive advantage. The ability to maintain its
brand reputation depends on a number of factors including but
not limited to borrowers’ and lenders’ satisfaction with the P2P
platform’s products, lawsuits, web server's stability and web
interface quality, timely repayments by the borrowers, of which
are beyond the Group’s control.
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In addition, the operation of P2P financing platform is a kind of
value-added telecommunications business in the PRC and the
current PRC laws and regulations place certain restrictions on
foreign ownership of companies on such business. Therefore, the
Group operates its P2P financing platform in the PRC through a
set of Structured Contracts which enable the Group to gain
controlling rights on the P2P financing platform and enable the
financial results, the entire economic benefits and risks of the
businesses of the P2P financing platform to flow onto the Group.
The compliance of PRC laws, rules and regulations of the
operation of P2P financing platform and the Structured Contracts
will be subject to the future development of the applicable PRC
Laws and regulations and is thus considered a risk for the
operation of P2P financing platform and other loan facilitation
services business.

POSSIBLE MANDATORY UNCONDITIONAL CASH
OFFER

On 27 August 2016, Allied Summit Inc. (the “Shares Vendor”),
a controlling shareholder of the Company, Huarong Financial
Services Asset Management L.P. (the “Offeror”) and Mr. Ma
Hongyi (the “Guarantor”), entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) (as amended
and supplemented by the supplemental sale and purchase
agreement dated 4 October 2016 and the second supplemental
sale and purchase agreement dated 15 November 2016),
pursuant to which the Offeror has conditionally agreed to
purchase and the Shares Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell,
2,128,5660,000 shares of the Company (the “Sale Shares”),
representing approximately 55.00% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report and the date
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, at an initial consideration
of HK$304,384,080 (equivalent to HK$0.143 per Sale Share),
which may be subject to a downward adjustment.

Subject to the completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale
Shares pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Sale
and Purchase Completion”), given that the Offeror will hold
approximately 55.00% of the shareholding interest of the
Company, the Offeror will therefore be required under Rule 26 of
the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers
Code”) to make a mandatory unconditional cash offer (the
"Offer”) for all the issued shares of the Company which are not
already owned or agreed to be acquired by it and parties acting
in concert with it (the "Offer Share(s)"). Subject to the Sale and
Purchase Completion, Kingston Securities Limited will, on behalf
of the Offeror and in compliance with the Takeovers Code, make
the Offer on the basis of HK$0.3 in cash for every Offer Share
held.
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For details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Offer,
please refer to (i) the announcements jointly issued by the
Company and the Offeror dated 5 October 2016, 18 October
2016, 26 October 2016, 15 November 2016, 30 December 2016
and 6 January 2017; and (ii) the announcements issued by the
Company dated 2 December 2016, 23 December 2016 and 28
February 2017 in relation to the delay in despatch of the circular
in respect of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Offer.

Further announcement(s) in relation to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and the Offer will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had recorded net current
assets of approximately HK$1,177,111,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$806,909,000); and cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$348,357,000 (31 December 2015: HK$197,059,000). The
Group did not enter into financial instruments for hedging
purpose.

Capital Structure

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1,088,000,000 shares
of the Company were issued to Allied Summit Inc., the
controlling shareholder of the Company, upon exercise of the
rights attaching to the Convertible Notes at the
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. As at 31 December 2016,
the total number of issued shares of the Company was
3,870,102,650 with par value of HK$0.001 each (31 December
2015: 2,782,102,650 shares with par value of HK$0.001 each).

conversion

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposals
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this report, there was
no significant investment, acquisition and disposals that should be
notified to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The performance and prospect of the significant investments of

the Group for the current year under review were discussed
under the sections of “Securities Investments Business” above.
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Segment Information

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 130 employees which
were mainly stationed in Hong Kong and the PRC. In-house
training programs were provided for its employees to enhance
their skills and job knowledge. The management of the Company
would continue to foster close co-operation among the
employees.

The Group will review the employee remuneration from time to
time based on their performance, experiences and industry
practice and salary increment is normally approved annually or by
special adjustment depending on length of services and
performance when warranted. In addition to salaries, the Group
provides employee benefits including medical insurance and
mandatory provident funds for employees in Hong Kong and
defined contribution retirement plans for employees in the PRC.
Share options and bonuses are also available to employees of the
Group at the discretion of the Directors and depending on the
financial performance of the Group and the performance of the
employees.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not pledge any assets to
banks or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity (31 December 2015: Nil).
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Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets
It is the Group's corporate mission to continue to explore ways
to improve its financial performance, to diversify its operations
into new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the
sources of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the
Company does not rule out the possibility of investing in or
changing to other profitable business as long as it is in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Also,
as part of its routine exercise, the Company reviews the
performance of its existing investment portfolio and evaluates the
investment potentials of other investment opportunities available
to the Company from time to time. Subject to the results of such
reviews, the Company may make suitable investment decisions
according to the then circumstance and information available
which may involve the disposal of the whole or part of its
existing investment portfolio and/or change of the asset
allocation of its investment portfolio and/or expanding its
investment portfolio with a view of realising and/or optimising
the expected return and minimising the risks. Meanwhile, the
Company does not preclude the possibility that the Company
may implement debt and/or equity fund raising plan(s) to satisfy
the financing needs arising out of any business development of
the Group as well as to improve its financial position in the event
that suitable fund raising opportunities arise.

As at the date of this report, the Company had not entered into
any agreement, arrangement, understanding, intention or
negotiation that should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ").

Treasure Policy

The Group has adopted a treasury policy on 24 May 2011 in
relation to the Group's investments in securities of other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange. The objective of the policy is
to enable the Group to control and govern the possible future
securities investments (if any, which may or may not occur).

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As the Group had a net cash position as at 31 December 2016
and as at 31 December 2015 with no borrowing, the gearing
ratios were not applicable.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

EXREFEFEEZARKRETE
AEBzEXERREESKIERAPBHR
B ZUCEREBEBNENESZHMITE
I A A AR @ R OK S T SR PR U & ROR o E
ENEARARBRRBEMNEZERT - AAF
THBRAERENKDA/EFTHEMAENATE X
%o Mo ERBEERE—FD - ARRTER
AMERAEREMAARARFEARAFHEREH
MREREZREEN - ERNBRBRNTER
ARRAEEEERBERLAREZEBED
HERERE  ERARSILE2HXBIBLE
REREMEES R/ RERREBEZEED
Bl SERRERE WERK SHWER
BR[O 3R SRR Rl B o B UL R B - KRR S BERR
REEEEREHAREZBETEBR K
AEEFE  WENAKEETAEBERME
ERMEFTERNEHMBAMER

RARERH - NAR L EFTLEMARBER
PraastmRATERRR]) REBENES
BEESMHEGIN((RERBE®RMNDHEZ
Wk ZH - M BRASKEA -

EMBER
AEEBCR-_TE——FRA-_THERKAEBAR
SERENEMBRIMEMAREF2E MK
R BEEBASESAES REE TN KK
BT EFREMA  AJEeAgErTER
£)e

LEESTNREERBLHR
HRAEER-_F—A"F+-_A=+—HBER=
E-RF+_A=1t—HERBASFENRR A
BEE MEEAGBLEXLTEAM -



Foreign Exchange Exposure

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the moment.
However, in the view of the fluctuation of Renminbi in recent
years, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is
carried out and the management will consider hedging the
foreign exchange exposure if it has material impact on the
Group.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material capital
commitment (31 December 2015: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2015: Nil).

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our Shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their unremitting support. Also, | would like to thank
the management and staff for their contributions.

On behalf of the Board

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited
Huang Chuan Fu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2017
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENESREIEERE

EXECUTIVES DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Chuan Fu (“Mr. Huang"), aged 43, is the chairman of
the Board (the “"Chairman”) and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company (the "Remuneration Committee”),
joined the Group since 13 April 2010. He is also the director of
seven subsidiaries of the Company. He has more than 15 years
of working experience. Mr. Huang acquaints with money lending
and provision of credit business and is experienced in securities
investment business.

Mr. Liang Jian Hua (“Mr. Liang"”), aged 47, joined the Group
since 29 April 2010. He is also a director of one subsidiary of
the Company. He has over 20 years of working experience in
trading, property investment, securities investment and money
lending business. Mr. Liang was a non-executive director of
China Environmental Energy Investment Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 986) during the
period from 29 January 2013 to 20 January 2014.

Ms. Jia Hui (“Ms. Jia"), aged 49, joined the Group since 13 April
2010. She has more than 25 years of working experience in area
of merchandising and project management. Since 2003, Ms. Jia
has been appointed as the business development manager of
Beijing International Trade Corporation.

Mr. Jiang Yi Ren (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 50, joined the Group since
29 April 2010. He has more than 25 years of working experience
in area of manufacturing and property investment. Currently, Mr.
Jiang is the vice president of Wenling City Zhong Fa Precision
Steel Parts Co., Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (“Mr. Wong"), aged 44, joined the Group
since 22 April 2010. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. He graduated
from Hong Kong Baptist University with an honors degree in
accounting in 1995. He is an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10 years’
experience in accounting, auditing and consulting. Mr. Wong was
a non-executive director of King Stone Energy Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 663)
until 12 March 2013. Mr. Wong was also an executive director of
Evershine Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as TLT
Lottotainment Group Limited) (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 8022) until 31 December 2013. He
has been appointed as independent non-executive director of
China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (formerly known as
Telefield International (Holdings) Limited) (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 1143) since 4 November 2015.

Mr. Zheng Zhen (“Mr. Zheng"), aged 40, joined the Group since
10 May 2013, is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He
graduated from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics, majoring in Accounting. Mr. Zheng possesses of over
10 vyears experiences in accounting and finance
industries. Currently, he is the financial controller of Zuoquan
Xinrui Metallurgy & Mine Co. Limited which is indirectly owned
as to 22.8% by Abterra Limited, a listed company in Singapore.

in various

Mr. To Langa Samuelson (“Mr. To"), aged 32, joined the Group
since 4 March 2015, is also a member of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. To is a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong and a member of
The Law Society of Hong Kong. He obtained his Bachelor
Degree in Laws and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL)
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. To has extensive
experience in law in Hong Kong, particularly in civil and
insurance-related matters. Mr. To is currently the consultant of
L&L Lawyers.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELaREEERE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Yu Yang (“Ms. Yu"), aged 33, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Group (the “Chief Executive Officer”) on
20 January 2016. Ms. Yu previously served as the managing
director of Greater China at Eternal Capital, a family fund, and
was responsible for the overall operation, management and
supervision of the investment business of the company in China,
as well as listing projects covering real estate, finance,
agriculture, husbandry and high-tech industries. Ms. Yu also
worked in Sino Group, which is one of the top four real estate
developers in Hong Kong. Ms. Yu graduated from the University
of Cambridge, the United Kingdom and holds a master's degree
in management.

Saved as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between

each of the Directors and senior management as required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of

the Group for the respective years as hereunder stated.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HER
MTITRARERTIHBFREZEELEAR

AR -

BI1% &

S i 2

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=t—-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—B-AF —hHF ZF-MF ZF-=F ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FE T FE T FE T FE T
Revenue I = 555,386 102,490 65,165 29,693 34,720
Profit/(loss) attributable PiN/NEIE ¥ =N
to the owners mF L (E )
of the Company 321,907 (148,282) (26,008) 75,597 62,283
Dividends f% & = - - - -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B AR R &

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at the respective
dates as hereunder stated.

UTHAEERTIEBAMZEERZEAN
BRABREME

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE ZT-1F _TWOF _T—=F _T—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHAIT FHT FHE T FHAIT
Plant and equipment % B K& 2,908 17,802 527 1,394 2,575
Goodwill EES 2,182,663 2,182,663 239,000 306,019 306,019
Intangible assets B EE - 1,194 1,194 - -
Deposit for acquisition of EUS K REFFF#E 2
logging concession b g - - 221 242 269
Available-for-sale AEHERE
investments 718,465 1,168,760 797,503 264,165 95,922
Convertible instruments AIBKRTEREGEEA
designated as financial TE’D\:HEﬁﬂT%f\T&
assets at fair value IR 2 R E E)
through profit or loss = - - - 104,712
Loan and interest ERE R KEF B
receivables 878,079 555,180 391,684 222,430 127,646
Other current assets HEftme&E 359,544 254,652 91,923 265,224 68,315
Current liabilities nRBEE (60,512) (44,595) (9,644) (67,547) (15,371)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEAGE (78) (304) - - -
Representing: 15 :
Share capital & A< 3,870 2,782 2,782 2,782 178,054
Reserves 15 4,059,704 4,124,956 1,509,384 988,984 511,849
Non-controlling interests FE PR R M = 17,495 7.614 142 161 184
Shareholders’ equity A SR o 4,081,069 4,135,352 1,512,308 991,927 690,087
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The Board is committed to uphold a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence
and maximising Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of Shareholders and comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements (both locally and
internationally), and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provision(s)”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
except for the deviations as explained below. The principles as
set out in the Code Provisions have been applied in the
Company's corporate governance structure.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee performed the corporate governance duties
set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code as delegated
by the Board. During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

DEVIATION FROM CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the role of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Before 20
January 2016, Mr. Huang Chuan Fu served as the Chairman but
the Company did not have any offices with title of "Chief
Executive Officer”. The executive Directors undertook the day-to-
day management of the Company’s business, whereas the
Chairman was responsible for management of the Board and
strategic planning of the Group. Under such arrangement, the
Board believed that the balance of power and authority was
adequately ensured. Upon the appointment of Ms. Yu Yang as
the Chief Executive Officer on 20 January 2016, the Company
has then complied with the CG Code.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report
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Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. One independent non-executive Director
who was appointed in previous years was not appointed for a
specific term but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company. As such, it is considered that such
provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying objectives of the
relevant provisions of the CG Code. Also, the Board does not
believe that arbitrary term limits on the Directors’ service are
appropriate given that the Directors ought to be committed to
representing the long-term interests of the Shareholders.

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman
of the board of directors should attend the annual general
meeting. Mr. Huang Chuan Fu, the Chairman, did not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 June 2016
("AGM") due to his other important engagement. Mr. Wong
Chun Hung, an independent non-executive Director, had chaired
the said AGM and answered questions from the Shareholders.

THE BOARD

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. In respect of Code Provision D.1.4 of the CG Code,
subsequent to 31 March 2012, formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment were subsequently executed by all Directors.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The key responsibility of Board is overseeing the business and
how the management serves the interests of the Shareholders
and other stakeholders. The Board assumes responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors, individually
and collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and its Shareholders, and ensure good corporate
governance and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.
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The roles of the Board include reviewing and guiding corporate
strategies and policies, monitoring financial and operating
performance and setting appropriate risk management policies.
All Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. To achieve this, the Board has adopted corporate
governance principles aimed at ensuring that the Board is
independent and fully informed on the key strategic issues facing
the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, risk management and
internal control, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing, and coordinating the daily operation of the
Company are delegated to the management.

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board has established three board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (collectively the “Board Committees”) to
oversee different areas of the Company's affairs. All Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense.

Under the Bye-Laws of the Company, one-third of the Directors,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest one-third, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation. They are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting and their re-election is subject to a vote of the
Shareholders. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which they retire. Further, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company but shall
be eligible for re-election at the meeting. Separate resolutions are
proposed for the election of each Director.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other. Such balanced board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists
across the Board.

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in

pages 18 to 19 of this annual report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualification.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

ExeACEREMALEELEREREER
ERUBREERRE ULNEEAGZERE
EREX 2BEFHEANUARFZNERKE
EBHMELRE - Blt EECCRMEHERE
REFEBHY A2EEEARAEHZEE
REEEZAEERRA -

EZeREBIVMBEEARTZBRER K
BREE EREEMAMPEE EARSH(L
HEPRMNGEERE) MHEHR ZEEEK
HERLESTEFRLARE HEBESFTSR
EEEMGAARFEEEERECBERRD
BRTERE -

BEEg4AK

EEECORU-—BEEEZES  HRABEKE
B FMZESRREZET(LABARIES
EEE]) EBARRTABEBEES - 20ESF
ZEEHERERHWERBITHEBRE  NAR
PABREXESERBUEEER  BABARQA
HHE o

REBEARAZARMAL  EEERRBEFRE
b BB =Sz EREARLF==0F
g ANERBEO =22 ANBARE)ERER
T UYBRIBRRRREESEME - REEFHA
BRNZBRBFREG LB EBME - 1o F
MEZENERERERZESEHEEZAR
ATERRBFRAE ERESTARERERE
T -ARBIBREEE - REFTREBFLRE

HWERMAR BEFE@IREAGTFEH  BR
EEe RN BIULEE-

EZMEABHNAFRFEIBEI9H  KERFH
TREE  EXNH  ERREE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Ally A

THEEBRRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHAR
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are Mr. Huang FRENITHRERSRAEERLERFBL L -
Chuan Fu and Ms. Yu Yang respectively.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of B AT ZTAEXA2IBE @ E/FEHELT
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated HAHXNAGEEER D W AEH—ARBF
and should not be performed by the same individual. It is aimed (f - EMNH TEHEE A EFNEA—A £
at striking a balance of power and authority so that job FESEEEEES MREZSHBEE -
responsibilities are not concentrated on any one individual. The M{THEHBAEAEB I EERESLE -
Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running

of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for

the operations and business development of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board and RARERE EFehEF L E 2 HKET
the Board Committees are given below and their respective #1F~  MEMREBENSNARERHIML -
responsibilities are discussed in this report.

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board of Directors Committee Committee Committee
Exg ERERS REZEE® FMESS
Executive Directors BTES

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Chairman BEEBELE TE - - member
Mr. LIANG Jian Hua RBEERE - - -
Ms. JIA Hui BB+ - - -
Mr. JIANG Yi Ren B—1EEAE - - -

Independent Non-executive Directors B F HITES

Mr. WONG Chun Hung EHEIELEE committee committee committee
chairman chairman chairman

FESER ZEEgER ZEgER

Mr. ZHENG Zhen B 18 5 A& member member member
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson BRI A member member member

An updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and AAGIHELBTH BN EFZHT=ESRKE -
functions at the Company, is available on the websites of the DI#BIBHERAAR 72 A HEHERE -
Company and the Stock Exchange.

ATHEZMRARDE —B—AEFH
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, the Board and the Audit Committee should include at least
three independent non-executive Directors and members
respectively. In compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Board should have at least one-third in number of its
members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At
least one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise that complies with Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from all independent non-executive
Directors annual confirmations of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.

The number of Board meetings and general meetings held during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and the Directors’ respective
attendance record are summarised as follows:

BAFHTES
FWARBIEII0MNEI2IERTE  EFSREZ
ZESRNNRVBR=-ZBBIFNTEER
KB - EMARAEIIAKIRTE EFENER
PERZ-BERBUFNITES - RIE— %
BIYFNTEZTABT S LA RE31002) 1K
RMEZBEEEXERI G NERYBEESR
E Sk

ARAICEEZRBBYFRTESRELTR
AIE3BERRFZBILIENERILZIFERR
B MARRRBR/ZREEFTEBB LD -

BE TR E+T_A=+t—HLEERNETZ
EZCCRRBREREREREEZZILEEL
BRE A a0 T

Number of Board
meetings attended

Number of general
meetings attended

(1 in total) (21 in total)
HERRAERE HEEFTEERARE
(EH1R) (& H21%)
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Chairman EEREE T E 0/1 16/21
Mr. LIANG Jian Hua REESRLE 171 20/21
Ms. JIA Hui BBzt 0/1 0/21
Mr. JIANG Yi Ren BE—{TraE 11 19/21

Independent Non-executive Directors B HITESE
Mr. WONG Chun Hung =B LA 1/ 18/21
Mr. ZHENG Zhen HEakaE 171 21/21
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson BRI % A 1/1 18/21
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Regular Board meetings are convened and held by the Company,
and the Directors are given adequate notice to attend such
regular Board meetings or other Board meetings. The Directors
are also provided in a timely manner with appropriate information
in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an
informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. Minutes of regular Board meetings,
other Board meetings or other committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient details. Draft and final versions of minutes
are circulated to all Directors for comments and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after the Board meetings
or committee meetings are held. Final versions of minutes are
kept by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

For having a diversified Board which is regarded as an essential
element in the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development, in August 2013, the Board adopted a
Board Diversity Policy with principles as summarised below.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the
composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board on appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity in order to
maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents, skills,
experience and background on the Board. In recommending
candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limit to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, length of service etc.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of the legal action against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
operations and businesses of the Group as well as his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Group's business and operation and information which
covered topics including but not limit to the CG Code, the
disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates and
changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements in
which the Group conducts its business for their study and
reference. During the vyear, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. All Directors (being Mr. Huang Chuan Fu,
Mr. Liang Jian Hua, Mr. Jiang Yi Ren, Ms. Jia Hui, Mr. Wong
Chun Hung, Mr. Zheng Zhen and Mr. To Langa Samuelson)
received regular briefings and updates from the Company
Secretary on the Group's business, operations and corporate
governance matters, studied publications, books and other
reading materials or attended seminars or workshops delivered by
professionals, which are relevant to their duties and
responsibilities.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the terms contained in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct for securities transactions and dealings (the
“Model Code"”). All Directors, upon specific enquiry, have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was duly constituted on 29 June
2005 and as at the date of this report, it comprises of an
executive Director, Mr. Huang Chuan Fu and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Hung, Mr. Zheng Zhen
and Mr. To Langa Samuelson.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration;

to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of
the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment
to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the Remuneration Committee
members’ respective attendance records are summarised as

e
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follows:
Number of
Remuneration Committee
meetings attended
(2 in total)
HESMEES
SRRE(EH2R)
Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman =HEELEE  FE 2/2
Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu =ERBLE 2/2
Mr. ZHENG Zhen 2048 ot A4 2/2
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson BRI S 2/2

The remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management is determined by reference to their experiences and
duties with the Company and the estimated time spent by them
on the Company’s matters. During the current year, meetings
were held to review the Company’s policy on remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and to review the performance
and remuneration of the Directors. Details of the Directors’ and
the Chief Executive Officer’'s remuneration are set out in note 7
to the financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was duly constituted on 13 February
2012. As at the date of this report, it comprises of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Hung, Mr.
Zheng Zhen and Mr. To Langa Samuelson.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are:

(a)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board at least annually; and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

(b)  to consider the skills mix needed in respect of the Directors
and make recommendations to the Board;
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to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies
of the Directors for the Board's approval. Academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise
and knowledge as well as other requirements under the
Listing Rules will be assessed to determine if the
nomination is suitable;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review the independent non-executive
Directors’ annual confirmations on their independence; and
make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities;

(f)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive;

() to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee
to discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board; and

(h)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that

may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the Company's constitution or imposed by
legislation.

In 2012, prior to the setting up of the Nomination Committee,
the Board as a whole is responsible for the said duties of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year, meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee to, among other things, review the structure, size and
composition of the board, make recommendation for
appointment of the Director, assess the independence of each of
the independent non-executive Directors and formulate the board
diversity policy and recommend to the board for approval. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the board diversity policy to
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ensure its effectiveness and considered the Group achieved the ZBEEEEZ TIbHE  UHERES R TR AK
policy since its adoption. The following table shows the SBEEAHEMUKRDERBBEEE - TXRIRE
attendance of the Nomination Committee members at the REZEB€@BKERFEANLFIREEESE S

Nomination Committee meetings held during the year: EmZ AL

Number of
Nomination Committee
meetings attended
(2 in total)
HEREZES
ERXE(EH2K)
Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman EEERE T E 2/2
Mr. ZHENG Zhen I 2/2
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson Mt BA hn %t A 2/2

Audit Committee EREEY

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent non- EHRZEEKERE=LBUIHNTEET=HE
executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Hung, Mr. Zheng Zhen and  #5t 4 - 8548 55 4 KAt B AN 5 4 -
Mr. To Langa Samuelson.

The number of Audit Committee meetings held during the year HE_-_ZT— XF+_A=+—BULHEFERETZ
ended 31 December 2016 and the Audit Committee members' BREEZEe R NULIBEREZESRKE 2 U

respective attendance records are summarised as follows: & et T
Number of
Audit Committee
meetings attended
(3 in total)
HEEREZEES
SRRE(EH#3R)
Mr. WONG Chun Hung, Chairman EHEMNRE T E 3/3
Mr. ZHENG Zhen B 18 5t A& 3/3
Mr. TO Langa Samuelson Mt BA N9t A 3/3

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report



The role and function of the Audit Committee are:

Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(a)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations, and ensure co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved;

to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, external auditor shall include any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with the
audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally. The Audit Committee should report to the
Board, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relations with the external auditor.

Review of financial information of the Company

(e)

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, interim
report and, if preparation for publication quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing the
Company’s annual report and accounts, interim report and if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgemental areas;
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(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumption and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

compliance with the Listing Rules and
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

legal

as regards to (e) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the
Board, the Company's senior management and the
person appointed as the Company’'s qualified
accountant and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a vyear, with the Company's external

auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in such reports and accounts and must give
due consideration to any matters that have been
raised by the Company's staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or external auditors;

Oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems

(9)

to review the Group's financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the
Board itself, to review the Group's risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;
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(p)

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure
coordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management
letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in this terms
of reference;

to review the Company's arrangements for its employees
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee shall ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the vyear, the Audit Committee has reviewed the half-
yearly and annual financial results and reports as well as the
Company’s risk management and internal control review report.
The Audit Committee also met the external auditor and
monitored the appointment of external auditor. Besides, the Audit
Committee performed the corporate governance duties as
delegated by the Board as discussed above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the year.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total remuneration
paid to Zenith CPA Limited was HK$2,080,000 for audit services
and non-audit services provided for the Company. Such total
remuneration included HK$1,500,000 for audit fee, which was
approved by the Board, HK$300,000 for review of interim results
and HK$280,000 for other non-audit services.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which are
prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards in force, and are published in
a timely manner. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
applying on a consistent basis suitable accounting policies and
ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s overall performance,
financial positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and
the Board is pleased to report that, so far, the annual and interim
results of the Group are announced within the three months and
two months limit respectively after the end of the relevant
periods.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility in (i) maintaining the
risk management and internal control system for the Group to
safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and assets of the
Group at all times; and (ii) evaluating the effectiveness of such
system. The system of internal control aims to help achieving the
Group’s business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining
proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks of failure when business
objectives are being sought.

Main Features
Described below are the main features of the Group's risk
management and internal control framework:

Control Environment

o The Directors and senior management are committed to
developing and maintaining high professional and ethical
standards and the Group provides sufficient training to
accounting and financial personnel to keep pace with the
growth and/or complexity of the business.

Risk Assessment
° Mechanisms are in place to identify and assess the risks of
fraud that affect achievement of the Group's objectives.

° Any risk identified should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board and be investigated. Immediate
action should be taken to mitigate the risk.

Information and Communication

° Administrative information system provides necessary
information to an appropriate employee of the Group at the
necessary level of detail on a timely basis.

° Channels are established for employees of the Group to
communicate suspected improprieties upstream through
other than a direct supervisor.
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Control Activities

° Policies and procedures are laid down for key business
processes for ensuring management directives are carried
out.

° Control activities include segregation of duties, authorization,
physical count, access control, documentation and records,
etc.

Monitoring

° Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance is
carried out.

° Professional third party is engaged to assess and comment

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.

Identity, Evaluating and Managing Significant Risks
The management has regular meetings with officers from
different operation divisions to identify significant risks and to
discuss the likelihood of occurrence, the impact of such risks and
risk mitigation strategic. The management then reports to the
Audit Committee and the Board with recommendations and
mitigation measures. The Board is responsible for determining
the risk mitigating strategy.

Internal Audit

The Group has outsourced the internal audit function by engaging
a professional third party to assess and comment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems during the vyear. There was no significant
deficiencies in risk management and internal controls reported by
such professional third party.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information
under the SFO, the Group has established the policy of
disclosure of inside information as an integrated part of its risk
management and internal control policy to provide guidance for
reporting and disclosure of inside information. Such policy,
together with the "“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by Securities and Futures Commission, are
also distributed across all relevant divisions and employees who
are likely to be in possession of inside information. Under such
policy, the Directors or management shall report any potential
inside information to the Board as soon as possible, so that the
Board can determine whether the matter or its development is
inside information and make disclosure whenever necessary.
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Review of Effectiveness

The Audit Committee also reviews internal control
identified by external auditor, regulatory authorities, the
management and the outsourced internal audit function and
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems at least annually. The
Audit Committee in turn reports any material issues to the
Board.

issues

The Board has conducted review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016, covering all material controls in
the financial, operational and compliance controls. The review
also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The
Board considers the risk management and internal control system
effective and adequate. The Board confirms that the Group has
complied with the Code Provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zhang Tan Fung (“Ms. Zhang") has been appointed as the
Company Secretary since 24 November 2014. Ms. Zhang is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has extensive experience in accounting and
internal control, corporate secretarial services and corporate
administration. The Company Secretary reports to the Board and
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring board procedures are followed. The
appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary are subject
to the Board approval in accordance with the Company's Bye-
Laws.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Zhang has taken
more than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
through annual general meetings or special general meetings and
Shareholders are encouraged to participate.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

On 30 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy to comply with the updated Listing Rules
and to reflect mostly the current communication practices of the
Company with its Shareholders. Such policy aims to (i) promote
effective communication with Shareholders and other
stakeholders; (ii) encourage Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company; and (iii) enable Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively. However, the Board will review the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory
and other requirements.

The Company established a range of communication channels to
provide its Shareholders and stakeholders with balanced and
understandable information about the Company. These include
annual general meeting, annual report, interim report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. The annual general
meeting and other general meetings of the Company are primary
forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Company shall provide Shareholders with
relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general
meeting in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a special
general meeting shall be convened by the members of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up capital of the
company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must
submit their requisition in writing, in which it must state the
objects of the meeting, and be duly signed by the requisitionists,
mailed and deposited at Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong (attention of the Company Secretary).
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for
a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date. Any reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General

Meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the members of
the Company holding at the date of the submission of the
proposals not less than one-twentieth (5%) of such of the paid-
up capital of the company as at the date of the submission
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the company; or
not less than 100 Shareholders.

The submission of the proposals must be made within 3
business days after a notice of the Shareholders’ meeting have
been served to all registered Shareholders by the Board. The
proposals must be written and must state the objects of the
proposals, and must be signed by the proposers, and mailed and
deposited at Units 3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(attention of the Company Secretary); and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more proposers.

The proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to update the
resolutions by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered Shareholders, provided
that the proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing
supplementary circular and updating related resolutions. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
proposer will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, no
resolution will be updated as requested.
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Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by email:
pphlhk@pphl.com.hk, fax: (852) 2114 0292, or mail to Units
3301-03, 33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website at www.irasia.com/listco/hk/pphl,
where information of the Company including the list of Directors,
announcements, circulars and reports released to the Stock
Exchange and other information are posted. Information on the
Company's website will be updated from time to time.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional documents
of the Company during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is Units 3301-3303,
33/F., West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
through its subsidiaries, engaging in operation of P2P financing
platform and other loan facilitation services, money lending and
provision of credit, provision of corporate secretarial and
consultancy services (which ceased on 4 July 2016), securities
investments and forestry business (which ceased on 28 June
2016). The activities and the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The discussion and analysis of principal activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including financial key
performance indicators, a fair review of the Company’s business,
a description of principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company and future development in the Company’s business,
can be found in “Financial Results”,
“Outlook” and “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” sections under
the “Letter from the Board” of this annual report.

"Business Review”,

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(a) Employee
Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. The
Group provides in-house training programs to enhance skills
and job knowledge of its employees. The Group also
reviews the performance of its employees from time to
time and rewards the recognised performance with
bonuses. In addition to remuneration, the Group provides
share option scheme as incentives and other employee
benefits including retirement benefits scheme and medical
insurance to its employees.
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(b) Customers
The principal customers of the Group are from operation of
P2P financing platform and other loan facilitation service
business, money lending and provision of credit business
and provision of corporate secretarial and consultancy
services business. The Group is committed to offer full
range services to its customers with critical and
professional attitude and maintains effective communication
with the customers in order to provide excellent services.

(c) Suppliers
The Group has good standing and long-term relationship
with its suppliers. The Group makes payments to the
suppliers promptly for better negotiation in price and
maintains good communication with the suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

It is the Company’s belief that improvements in environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") matters will enhance the long
term performance of the Company as well as the benefits of the
Company'’s primary stakeholders, which include the Shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers and other business partners.
Taking environmental policy as an example, the Group is
committed to build up an environmental-friendly working
environment by promoting energy savings in the offices and
collecting waste papers for recycling. The Group will continue to
make efforts to minimise its operational impact on the
environment and the use of natural resources. An ESG report will
be published separately on the Company’s website to report the
Company's ESG policies and its compliance with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide contained
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2016. The said ESG report is expected to be
published on the Company’s website no later than the end of
July 2017.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group, to the best of
our knowledge, has complied with the Money Lenders
Ordinance, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing
Rules, the SFO, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, laws in
the PNG for the forestry business and other relevant laws and
regulations.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

Beijing Huiju Wealth Management Consultant
Company Limited* (A W EBHMEEEZHAER25)
(“Beijing Huiju Management”)

The P2P online financing platform in the PRC is a platform
matching borrowers with private lenders for various financial
products through the internet and it is managed by Beijing Huiju
Management. The Group only participates in providing matching
services between lenders and borrowers and therefore does not
require a money lending license to conduct its business.
However, the Group is required to hold a valid internet content
provider (“ICP") license to run the P2P platform. The operation of
the P2P platform is a kind of value-added telecommunications
business in the PRC and the current PRC laws and regulations
place certain restrictions on foreign ownership of companies on
such business. As such, as at the completion of the P2P
Acquisition, Beijing Huiju Management, Beijing Huiju Financial
Consulting Co. Limited® (IR EEFBU BERER QR
(“Beijing Huiju Financial”), a foreign enterprise established in
the PRC with limited liability which is a 96% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and/or the registered shareholder of
Beijing Huiju Management (the “Registered Shareholder(s)"”) or
the Registered Shareholder’'s shareholders entered into the
Structured Contracts, which enable the financial results, the
entire economic benefits and risks of the businesses of Beijing
Huiju Management to flow onto Beijing Huiju Financial and
enable Beijing Huiju Financial to gain the controlling right of
Beijing Huiju Management. The ICP license is currently
possessed by Beijing Huiju Management which acts as an
operating company. In the event of default by borrowers, Beijing
Huiju Management will, on a best effort basis, identify
independent debt buyers through business referrals to acquire the
defaulted loans from the lenders on the P2P platform.

Before 21 July 2016, the Registered Shareholder was Beijing
KangDingAo Hospital Investment Management Company Limited*®
(bR ERRERIEEBEARADAF). Since 21 July 2016, the
Registered Shareholders have been changed to Mr. Guo Junfeng,
being the general manager of Beijing Huiju Financial (the
“Change of the Registered Shareholders”). Currently Beijing
Huiju Management is owned as to 99% by Mr. Guo Junfeng and
1% by Mr. Dong Zhitian.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Beijing Huiju
Management recorded revenue and a net profit of approximately
RMB41,278,000 and RMB11,902,000 respectively (2015: revenue
and a net loss of approximately RMB4,138,000 and
RMB65,371,000 respectively).

# The English names of the Chinese entitles are translation of their Chinese
names and are included herein for identification purpose only.
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As at 31 December 2016, the total assets and net assets of
Beijing Huiju Management were approximately RMB121,653,000
and RMB79,261,000 respectively (31 December 2015: total
assets and net assets of approximately RMB86,599,000 and
RMB67,359,000 respectively).

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
Structured Contracts subsisting during the year ended or as at 31
December 2016:

(1) Exclusive Option Agreement
Date: 2 September 2013 (superseded by a new
agreement dated 21 July 2016 upon the Change
of the Registered Shareholders)

Parties: The Registered Shareholder(s)
Beijing Huiju Financial

Beijing Huiju Management

Subject:  The Registered Shareholder(s) irrevocably agrees,
to the extent permitted under the laws of the
PRC, to transfer to Beijing Huiju Financial or any
persons(s) designated by Beijing Huiju Financial
at any time and from time to time, all or in
tranches of its equity interest in Beijing Huiju

Management.

(2)  Exclusive Technical Licensing and Management Service
Agreement
Date: 2 September 2013 (superseded by a new
agreement dated 21 July 2016 upon the change
of the Registered Shareholders)

Parties: Beijing Huiju Financial
Beijing Huiju Management
Subject:  Beijing Huiju Management engages Beijing Huiju

Financial on an exclusive basis to provide
management consultancy services in connection
with the business of Beijing Huiju Management.
In consideration of the provision of management
consultancy services, Beijing Huiju Management
will pay Beijing Huiju Financial a service fee
equivalent to 100% of the income and interests
of Beijing Huiju Management every year after
deduction of necessary costs and expenses.
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(3)  Shareholder Voting Right Entrustment Agreement

Date:

Parties:

Subject:

2 September 2013 (superseded by a new
agreement dated 21 July 2016 upon the Change
of the Registered Shareholders)

The Registered Shareholder(s)
Beijing Huiju Financial
Beijing Huiju Management

The Registered Shareholder(s), among other
things, irrevocably and unconditionally
undertakes to authorise any person as
designated by the Beijing Huiju Financial
(including but not limited to the members of the
board of directors of Beijing Huiju Financial and
their respective successors or liquidators) to
exercise on their behalf full shareholders’ rights
under the articles of association of Beijing Huiju
Management and applicable PRC laws and
regulations, including, but not limited to (i) the
right to attend the shareholders’ meeting; (ii) the
right to sign minutes of shareholders’ meeting
and shareholders’ resolutions; (iii) all
shareholder’s rights under the articles of
association of Beijing Huiju Management; and (iv)
the right to file documents with the relevant
companies registry.

(4)  Equity Pledge Agreement

Date:

Parties:

1 April 2015 (superseded by a new agreement
dated 21 July 2016 upon the Change of the
Registered Shareholders)

Beijing Huiju Financial as the pledgee

The Registered Shareholder’s shareholders or the
Registered Shareholders upon the Change of the
Registered Shareholders (the “Pledgors”)

Beijing Huijiu Management
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Subject:

(5)

The Pledgors have pledged to Beijing Huiju
Financial their equity interests in the Registered
Shareholder or Beijing Huiju Management upon the
Change of the Registered Shareholders held by
them (the "Equity Interests”) as security for
Beijing Huiju Financial’s rights and interests granted
by the Exclusive Option Agreement, Shareholder
Voting Right Entrustment Agreement, and Exclusive
Technical Licensing and Management Service
Agreement (the “Master Agreements”), which
include any payment (including legal expense),
expense, loss, interests, liquidated damages,
compensation, costs for realization of loans, costs
for specific performance of the Pledgors’
contractual obligations, and liabilities incurred as
results of the Master Agreements’ termination,
recession, wholly or partially invalidation. Beijing
Huiju Financial shall have the right to get
compensation by converting the Equity Interests
into money and seek preferential payments from
the proceeds from the auction or sales of the
Equity Interests concerned or other disposal
methods as agreed by each party in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

Spouse Undertaking

Date:

Parties:

Subject:

21 July 2016

Spouse of each married Registered Shareholder

The spouse of each married Registered
Shareholder has irrevocably undertaken that she
has full knowledge of and has consented to the
entering into of the Structured Contracts by the
Registered Shareholder.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this report, save as disclosed above, there were no
material changes to the Structured Contracts and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted, nor was
there any unwinding of them or of a failure to do the same
due to the restrictions that led to their adoption being

removed.
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Compliance of the Structured Contracts with the PRC
laws, rules and regulations for operation of P2P
financing platform

Since the completion of the P2P Acquisition and up to the date
of this report, there is no evidence that comes to the attention
of the Company that the parties to the Structure Contracts have
not performed their obligations in compliance with the Structured
Contracts. Moreover, as at the date of this report, the Group has
not encountered any interference or encumbrance from any
governing bodies in operating its business under the Structured
Contracts. Thus, the Board considered that the implementation of
the Structured Contracts is satisfactory and in compliance and
the Structured Contracts shall be enforceable under the PRC laws
and regulations.

As disclosed in the Circular, on 19 January 2015, the Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC (the "MOC") published the draft Foreign
Investment Law (the “Draft Law"”) to solicit public comment,
which, when finally adopted, will have significant impact on the
foreign investment regime of the PRC. The Draft Law was
published accompanied by the MOC’s notes on, among others,
the background, guidelines and principle, and main content of the
Draft Law and elaboration on several issues including the
treatment of the existing structured contracts arrangement (in
other words, variable interest entities arrangements or contractual
arrangements) which were established before the effectiveness
of the Foreign Investment Laws. Currently, Mr. Su Weibiao, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, irrevocably and
unconditionally undertakes to the Company that he shall at all
times maintain “control” of the Company as defined in and for
the purpose of the Draft Law (as promulgated or amended from
time to time), currently being not less than 50% of the issued
share capital of the Company based on the existing contents of
the Draft Law, or such other shareholding percentage ratio(s) of
the issued share capital of the Company to ensure that the
Structured Contracts continue to be in full force and effect. In
view of the potential risks of continuing adoption of the
Structured Contracts, the Company plans and intends to adopt
the Revised Business Model as mentioned in “Letter from the
Board” so as to displace the Structured Contracts, and hence the
associated risks and uncertainties. Details of the risks relating to
the Structured Contracts have been disclosed in the Circular and
the announcement of the Company dated 5 January 2017
regarding the Revised Business Model.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 65
and 66 respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

DONATIONS
There was HK$78,000 donation made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$100,000).

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES
Details of the movement in share capital of the Company and the
Convertible Notes during the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in note 22 and note 20 to the financial statements
respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the sale and purchase agreement of the P2P Acquisition,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to entered
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the distributable reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 69 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2016
is set out on page 21 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year. As at 31
December 2016, 3,870,102,650 ordinary shares with a par value
of HK$0.001 each were in issue. Details are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
12 June 2012 (the “Adoption Date”) and terminated the previous
share option scheme which had expired on 21 June 2012. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
the grantee, including employee, officer, agent consultant or
representative of the Group (including any executive or non-
executive director of any member of the Group), to contribute to
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract resources that are valuable to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from the Adoption Date and will
expire on 11 June 2022.

During the special general meeting held on 18 December 2013,
the Shareholders duly approved that, subject to and conditional
upon the listing committee of the Stock Exchange granting listing
of and permission to deal in the shares of the Company to be
issued upon the exercise of options which may be granted under
the Company’'s Share Option Scheme, the existing scheme
mandate limit in respect of the granting of options to subscribe
for shares of the Company under the Share Option Scheme be
refreshed and renewed provided that the total number of shares
of the Company which may be allotted and issued pursuant to
the grant or exercises of the options under the Share Option
Scheme (excluding options previously granted, outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share Option Scheme)
shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as
at 18 December 2013, that is 278,210,265 shares of the
Company. The Directors are authorised, subject to compliance
with the Listing Rules, to grant options under the Share Option
Scheme up to the Refreshed Limit and to exercise all the powers
of the Company to allot, issue and deal with shares of the
Company pursuant to the exercise of such options granted under
the Share Option Scheme. The subscription price will be a price
determined by the Board and at least the highest of: (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
options must not exceed 30% of the number of shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted if such grant
would result in the 30% limit being exceeded. Details were
shown in the circular of the Company dated 2 December 2013.
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No share option has been granted or exercised since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The total number of
shares of the Company for issue under the Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this report was 278,210,265 shares,

representing 7.2% of the then issued share capital of the
Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31

December 2016 and up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUANG Chuan Fu, Chairman
Mr. LIANG Jian Hua

Ms. JIA Hui

Mr. JIJANG Yi Ren

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WONG Chun Hung

Mr. ZHENG Zhen

Mr. TO Langa Samuelson

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
Code Provision A.4 of the CG Code, Mr. Huang Chuan Fu, Mr.
Zheng Zhen and Mr. To Langa Samuelson will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re- election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 18 to 20 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is considered to have any interests in the businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, other than those
businesses where the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors is a director or
employee of a company which has an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO and none of the Directors,
the chief executive of the Company nor their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any other interests or short
positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Directors or the chief
executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 178 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, every
Director, secretary and other officers shall be indemnified and
accrued harmless out of assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act execution of
their duty in their offices.

Such provision was in force during the course of the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 and remained in force as of the
date of this report. The Company has taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance throughout the year,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial Shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31
December 2016, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5%
or more of the Company’s issued share capital.

FTERRRADAROGREERKRD 2
BER /KA

REZFB-RE+T-A=+—R0 REFEHFLHE
RBIFEXVEREIBHRRMEFEZ T EMEERL
MAELEs  AAREHAGUTEIERRER K
RAIEETRAS% RN L2 EERAE -

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company: RERATEBRZHEFR:
Number of Percentage of the
shares Company'’s issued
Name Capacity and nature of interest interested share capital (%)
BERERz MHEALAREBRITERA
BE LB SoREEME B3 E A B (%)
Su Weibiao (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation 13,621,219,755 351.96
BRAER (KT BXEHARFE
Allied Summit Inc. (Notes 1 and 2) Beneficial owner 13,621,219,755 351.96
Allied Summit Inc. (B &F1%2) BEmnBEBA
Huarong Financial Services Asset Beneficial owner 2,128,560,000 55.00
Management L.P./the Offeror
(Notes 3 and 4)
Huarong Financial Services Asset EmEAA
Management L.P., Z# A
(Kt st354)
The Ministry of Finance of the Held by controlled corporation 2,128,560,000 55.00
People’s Republic of China
(Note 3)
R AR A0 B B BROED (AT A2 3) MEEHRRFE
China Huarong Asset Management Held by controlled corporation 2,128,560,000 55.00
Co., Ltd. (Note 3)
PREEREEEERMERDA BXEHARFE
(K7&t3)
Mr. Ma Hongyi/the Guarantor Held by controlled corporation 10,912,000,000 281.96
(Note 5)
BERERE RN LS) BEEHARFE
Triple Sino Limited (Notes 5 and 6) Beneficial owner 10,912,000,000 281.96

Triple Sino Limited (47 7i£5%6)

ERmBEEA

Note 1:

Note 2:

Allied Summit Inc. is owned as to 80% by Mr. Su Weibiao and as to
remaining 20% by Mr. Ng Kwok Fai.

Allied Summit Inc. holds i) 2,709,219,7565 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 70.00% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report; and ii) the Convertible Notes
issued by the Company in the principal amount of HK$2,182,400,000
which are convertible into 10,912,000,000 conversion shares of the
Company upon full conversion, representing approximately 281.96% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.
The conversion rights under the Convertible Notes shall only be
exercisable provided that the public float requirements under Rule 8.08
of the Listing Rules is satisfied.
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Note 3. Huarong Financial Services Asset Management L.P./the Offeror is 100%
indirectly owned by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd., which
is 63.36% directly owned by the Ministry of Finance of the People's

Republic of China.

Note 4.  On 27 August 2016, the Shares Vendor, the Offeror and the Guarantor
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement (as amended and
supplemented by the supplemental sale and purchase agreement dated
4 October 2016 and the second sale and purchase agreement dated 15
November 2016),
agreed to purchase and the Shares Vendor has conditionally agreed to

sell, 2,128,560,000 Sale Shares, representing approximately 55.00% of

pursuant to which the Offeror has conditionally

the entire issued share capital of the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

Note 5.  Triple Sino Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ma Hongyi/the Guarantor.

Note 6. On 27 August 2016, the Shares Vendor entered into the sale and

purchase agreement of the Convertible Notes (the “CN Transfer
Agreement”) with Triple Sino Limited and the Guarantor (as amended
and supplemented by the supplemental CN Transfer Agreement dated 4
October 2016 and the second supplemental CN Transfer Agreement
dated 15 November 2016), pursuant to which the Shares Vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell and Triple Sino Limited has conditionally
agreed to purchase the amended and restated Convertible Notes in the
principal amount of HK$1,249,070,000 and the amended and restated
Convertible Notes in such principal amount (up to HK$933,330,000) as
may be released to the Shares Vendor by the Company after the
adjustment to be made to the Consideration, subject to and upon the
terms and conditions of the CN Transfer Agreement at the aggregate
maximum consideration of HK$2,182,400,000.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
the largest customer represented approximately 62% and 27%
respectively (2015: 45% and 12% respectively) of the Group's
total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
of direct costs attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
and the largest supplier represented approximately 91% and
22% respectively (2015: 85% and 39% respectively) of the
Group’s total direct costs.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section of “Share Options” disclosed above, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2016 was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all of its employees in Hong Kong and
defined contribution retirement plans for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC. Particulars of the MPF Scheme are set
out in “Other employee benefits” section under note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as the issue of 1,088,000,000 shares of the Company to
Allied Summit Inc., the controlling shareholder of the Company,
upon exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Notes as disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements, the Group has not entered into any connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions that are not
exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board
confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2016 and as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
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AUDITORS

Following the resignation of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as
the auditor of the Company, ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company
Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 9 January 2013. The Company'’s financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2012 to 2014 were audited by
ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited.

CCTH CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company
in succession to ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited, who
retired from the office with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company dated 4 June 2015.

CCTH CPA Limited has resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 8 January 2016 as the Company could not reach
a consensus with CCTH CPA Limited on the audit fee for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 and Zenith CPA Limited
has been appointed by the Directors as the new auditor of the
Company with effect from 8 January 2016 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of CCTH CPA Limited.

The Company's financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2016 were audited by Zenith CPA Limited.

A resolution for reappointment of Zenith CPA Limited as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited
Huang Chuan Fu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific
Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group"”) set out on pages 65 to 160, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Valuation of available-for-sale investments

As at 31 December 2016, the listed available-for-sale investments
were valuated at HK$718,465,000 and classified as level 1
financial instruments in accordance with HKFRS 13 where quoted
prices in active markets are available for identical assets. During
the vyear, part of the listed available-for-sale investments
representing investment in Renhe Commercial Holdings Company
Limited suffered from a decrease in fair value of HK$12,880,000.
This gives rise to impairment loss of HK$11,280,000 being
recognised in the statement of profit or loss after setting off the
relevant balance of available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve brought forward.

Our audit procedures included agreeing available-for-sale
investments of HK$718,465,000 as at 31 December 2016 to
relevant brokers’ statements and audit confirmations, and using
independent sources of information to identify market value to
ensure the market prices were quoted prices in active markets.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of loan and interest receivables

The impairment of loan and interest receivables is estimated by
the management through the application of judgement and use of
subjective assumptions. Provisions are made for impairment loss
when the Group will not collect all amounts due.

The loan and interest receivables amounted to HK$878,079,000
at 31 December 2016. Management estimated the level of
expected impairment loss, with reference to observed historical
repayment pattern and collateral against certain receivables held.
Due to the significance of loan and interest receivables
(representing approximately 21% of total assets) and the
corresponding uncertainty inherent in such an estimate, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included testing controls on a sample basis
over the approval, recording and monitoring of loan and interest
receivables, assessing the appropriateness of evaluating the
judgements and assumptions used for the impairment and testing
the loan and interest receivables aging analysis. We also
challenged the information used to determine the expected
impairment loss by considering subsequent cash collection
performance, compared the value of realisable collateral based on
available information provided by the management, assessed
whether the financial statements disclosures appropriately reflect
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, and reviewed minutes of the
board of directors relating to the recoverability of loan and
interest receivables.

Impairment assessments for gooadwill
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2016 was
HK$2,182,663,000.

Management determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 13 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our audit procedures included evaluating the discounted cash
flow models, and assumption and parameters used by
management and the Group, giving particular attention to the
forecasted revenue, cost and results. Our procedures included
testing the assumptions used in the cash flow forecast, obtaining
corroborative evidence to support the growth rate by comparing
it to historic inflation rates, and assessing the reasonableness of
the discount rates applied by comparing it to the current market
condition for the cash generating unit. We also carried out audit
procedures on management’s sensitivity calculations and then
assessed the disclosures on the impairment testing, specifically
the key assumptions that had the most significant effect on the
determination of the recoverable amount of the goodwill, such as
the discount rate and growth rate.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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¥8 3 1% BRHD R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC PLYWOOD HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheng Po Yuen.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Po Yuen

Practising Certificate Number: P04887
Hong Kong

16 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

— /_\ =3 \/
mEE@mK
Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F-AFt-A=t ALFRE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B it FET FHE T
REVENUE Uy & 5 555,386 102,490
Cost of services Bk 7% Ak A< (781) (1,418)
Gross profit E 554,605 101,072
Other income and gains H At W A R UK 3= 5 53,422 77,100
Selling and distribution expenses  $5E & 9 55 = (15,030) (9,943)
Administrative expenses THEA (147,473) (72,775)
Other expenses HiAZ (23,170) (239,230)
Interest on other loan HWERZ2F B = (99)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBADER(F8) 6 422,354 (143,875)
Income tax expense FEHAX 9 (89,290) (5,963)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR & R&ER (F#E) 333,064 (149,838)
Attributable to: T %) % T8 FE {h -
Owners of the parent IS/NSIETFEPN 321,907 (148,282)
Non-controlling interests IF 12 P 2= 11,157 (1,556)
333,064 (149,838)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREEREZFEAEN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY #RZER (&E#E)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic K
- For profit/(loss) for the year -BBFERNRN,(E8) 11 HK9.40 cents  HK(5.33) cents
7l A
Diluted B
- For profit/(loss) for the year - EBRENEH,(F8) HK2.18 cents HK(5.33) cents
AL Bl
AFEBEIERERQT —Z—AEFH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

VA=IVANGFAN Q %%
/\‘/T\ ﬁ J" #&
Year ended 31 December 2016

BE_T-ARF+tA=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E-RF —h%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b 7 FERT FAT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FRBEF,(FBE) 333,064 (149,838)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ H#h2®E(E1#E) W
INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income to BREEHEEFHES
be reclassified to profit or loss in BmzHEMt2mE
subsequent periods: (E518) Wz
Available-for-sale investments: AHEHERE:
Changes in fair value N EEE (339,817) 430,367
Reclassification adjustments for qu)\Z? Bankz
gain/(loss) included in the =/ (BB
consolidated statement of profit or i%ﬁ DEFE
loss
- gain on disposal - HEW = 5 (30,291) (5,5682)
— impairment losses - REESE 15 1,600 -
(368,508) 424,785
Exchange differences: 5 Z=5:
Exchange differences on translation MEGINETFFIESE 2
of foreign operations bE 5 =% (16,473) (1,507)
Reclassification adjustments for MEANLEGINER
foreign operations disposal of EHZ BEF D ERAE
during the year 28 (1,446) -
(17,919) (1,507)
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BREZHBERIER
(LOSS)/INCOME TO BE BEHEMEE
RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR (BB WEFER
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS HFRHMZ2ME
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (B8, W M
(LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR, BiE
NET OF TAX (386,427) 423,278
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ SR2ME(EE) Kz
INCOME FOR THE YEAR pg o] (53,363) 273,440
Attributable to: T 5 & IE AL -
Owners of the parent ISI/NGIE PN (64,164) 273,676
Non-controlling interests FE 5 IR B A 10,801 (236)
(53,363) 273,440
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B IS IR O 3R

—=

31 December 2016

—RNE+=ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RE — R4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iokz3 TET FHE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Plant and equipment B 2 2,908 17,802
Goodwill EES 13 2,182,663 2,182,663
Intangible assets EEE 14 - 1,194
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 15 718,465 1,127,088
Total non-current assets InBEELE 2,904,036 3,328,747
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Loan and interest receivables JEWE K& F 8 16 878,079 555,180
Trade and other receivables JFE L BR 3R &ﬁ‘rﬁl
JiE W 3R IR 17 5,638 55,419
Available-for-sale investments A E ?x & 15 - 41,672
Tax recoverable A Y @ R T8 5,549 2,174
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEEY 18 348,357 197,059
Total current assets MEEESE 1,237,623 851,504
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HEMpENRBERESER 19 13,333 21,967
Tax payable AN 47,179 22,628
Total current liabilities mEAEEAR 60,512 44,595
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,177,111 806,909
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEREBERRBERS
LIABILITIES 4,081,147 4,135,656
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES rRBER
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 21 78 304
Net assets BEEFE 4,081,069 4,135,352
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR B B IR R

31 December 2016
T R"E+=ZA=1+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i &t TER FET
EQUITY 3
Equity attributable to BAGAEEA
owners of the parent iR
Share capital P& 7 22 3,870 2,782
Reserves & 4,059,704 4,124,956
4,063,574 4,127,738
Non-controlling interests IF 12 M 2 17,495 7,614
Total equity T B 4,081,069 4,135,352
Huang Chuan Fu Liang Jian Hua
EERE R
Director Director
EE 0
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SERBEBE

/\\/ \
Year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—RF+-_A=+—HBLHFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRRAEEARL
Available-
for-sale Equity Retained
Share Share  investment PRC  Exchange component of profits/ Non-
Share  premium option | Contributed ~ statutory fl convertible  (accumulated controlling
capital  account reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve notes losses) Total interests Total equity
Rt BRE THHERE REEE  EXRD  TRREEz  REEA/
B EEE B Efifif  RéRH #E i ] BE¥S  (RAEB) @i FBRER  RRHE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 22) (note 23) (note 24
Tén TER FiEn FiEn FiEn TEn T T FiEn FiEn TiEn TEn
(W#22) (23 (i)
At 1 January 2015 RZE-8%-A-H 2,782 121,226 1,367 574,487 277,102 - 681 - (65,479) 1,612,166 142 1,512,308
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - (148,282 (148,282) (1,556)  (149,838)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZERE/
for the year: (BH#):
Available-for-sale investments: THNERE:
- Change in fair value ATEEY - - - 430,367 - - - - - 430,367 - 430,367
- Reclassification adjustments -ENSBER - - - (5,582) - - - - - (6,582) - (5,582)
Exchange differences related to BNEBRBELZE
foreign operations - - - - - - (2,827) - - (2,827) 1,320 (1,507)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the FR2E M /(1)
year ag - - - 424,785 - - (2,827) - (148,282) 273,676 (236) 273,440
Issue of mandatory convertiole notes ~ H TR ETRRER
(note 20) (#i#20) - - - - - - - 2,341,896 - 2,341,896 579 2,347,692
Appropriation to statutory reserve ARELETRE - - - - - 5,282 - - 5,282) - - -
Capital injection iE - - - - - - - - - - 1912 1,912
Transfer of share option reserve upon the B RER RN A E R E
forfeiture or expiry of share options HRERERG - - (1,367) - - - - - 1,367 - - -
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January —BEtZA=1-HER
2016 = -1 &-F-H 2,782 721,226 - 999,272 277,102 5,282 (2,146) 2,341,896 (217,676) 4,127,738 7,614 4,135,352
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - - 321,907 321,907 11,157 333,064
Other comprehensive loss FREMZE
for the year: BE:
Available-for-sale investments: MEHERE:
- Change in fair value -nTEE = = = (339,817) - - - - - (339,817) - (339,817)
- Reclassification adjustments -BNNEREER = = = (28,691) - - - - - (28,691) - (28,691)
Exchange differences related to BIEBEBERZR
foreign operations = = = = = = (12,372) = = (12,372) (4101) (16,473)
Adjustments relating to disposal of ~ BtHEKBARELZ
subsidiaries (note 28) AE(W228) = = o = = = (5,191) = = (5,191) 3,45 (1,446)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for A2 (F1#8) /i B8
the year = = = (368,508) © = (17,563) - 321,907 (64,164) 10,801 (53,363)
Capital injection TE = = = = - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
Issue of new shares upon conversion H & fl EA IR R Z HEB 4K
of the mandatory convertible notes 2773 k{3 1,088 211,244 = = = = = (212,332) = = = =
Appropriation to statutory reserve BEEHE = = = = - 15,758 - - (15,758) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries note 28) & B AR (4:228) - - - - - - - - - - (1,920) (1,920)
At 31 December 2016 R=F-~F+-A=+-A 3,870  932,470* - 630,764* 277102%  21,040* (19,709)* 2,129,564* 88,473* 4,063,574 17,495 4,081,069
£ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHEBEERSBANBEMRBRERNZGEA GB
HK$4,059,704,000 (2015: HK$4,124,956,000) in the consolidated statement 4_059 704,000/% 7T (= T — A F:4,124,956,000%
of financial position. 7T
AFEFEEERBERAT —ZF—ARFFER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= AL AN = —
;Z\vT\ = Iﬁi//lb%%%
Year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—"FNA=1+HILAMER

2016 2015
—E-XRE —ET—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B it FBT & 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& THBHvEELRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELATE R (E1E) 422,354 (143,875)
Adjustments for: TS EED AR
Bank interest income |7 A B A 5 (1,150) (107)
Dividend income from available-for- AREEREZ
sale investments fi% B U A 5 (4,193) (57,425)
Finance costs Bl & AR - 99
Depreciation e 6 4,339 1,268
Reversal of impairment of loan and BEEKREREFE
interest receivables A 5 = (12,690)
Impairment of goodwill GESNAE 6 - 239,000
Impairment of other receivables Hfth f& WK IB R B 6 1,941 -
Impairment of deposit for acquisition — EUSR REFHF#E 2 ¢
of logging concession pERIE] 6 = 190
Impairment of available-for-sale b EREREA
investments 6 11,280 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale  HEAEHERE ~
investments g 5 (30,189) (5,550)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LERB AT W= 5 (16,201) (198)
Loss on disposal of items of plant HEMERZHEEE 2
and equipment &5 18 6 9,949 40
398,130 20,752
Increase in loan and interest FE U B 3k & R B N
receivables (322,899) (150,906)
Decrease in trade and other JE U BR 3R K2 EL At jE UK
receivables KIE R D 44,752 100,731
Increase in cash held on behalf of RELCEEFBEEZR®
brokerage clients #n (12,820) =
Increase in account payable to FE S 48 42 B P SR IA I8 0
brokerage clients 12,820 -
Decrease in other payables and H B A 308 K R AT
accruals & R (8,585) (45,068)
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEL (B2
operations He 111,398 (74,491)
Bank interest received B YR 1T F B 1,150 107
Interest paid BT 2 = (99)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BB BNERH (4,376) (13,674)
PRC income tax paid BB ATSH (18,278) (359)
Withholding tax paid BB (43,000) —
Net cash flows from/(used in) ReESEFEL (BH) 2
operating activities BemE FH 46,894 (88,516)

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HeRBERER

Year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—R"E-~A=1THL~EA

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FiE T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of available- HETHEEHRE 2
for-sale investments FFr 18 %8 110,044 100,750
Dividend received from listed Bl EmREZRE
investments = 47,815
Dividend received from unlisted BRIELETHREZRE
investments 4,193 9,610
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAUHDERE
investments (10,013) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g4 NG 26 - 59,221
Acquisition of assets and liabilities WEEERERE 27 487 -
Acquisition of intangible assets WisEEEE 14 (500) -
Acquisition of other long term assets Ut iE £ RHIA & (205) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNEB AT 28 17,889 190
Purchase of items of plant and BEMENRE&HEIEE
equipment (1,174) (667)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HERELEZEEEMSE
plant and equipment B 729 -
Net cash flows from investing KREEHELE RS
activities mEFR 121,450 216,919
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REFTB2RSRE
ACTIVITIES
New other loans I8 H M B 5K - 25,000
Repayment of other loans EEEMER - (25,000)
Capital injection from a non-controlling JF % f% i% 3£ &
shareholder 1,000 1,912
Net cash flows from financing BEESELEZ
activities HWe ke F8 1,000 1,912
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH B¢ RESSEWE M
EQUIVALENTS HE 169,344 130,315
Cash and bank balances at beginning F# 23 4 &R 174 %
of year 197,059 67,734
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEE R G E) B
changes, net F R (18,046) (990)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRXRZ2HRERBELZEY
END OF YEAR 348,357 197,059
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF BERBESEEYES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS by
Cash and bank balances e KIRITH & 18 239,735 197,059
Non-pledged time deposits with KT RE BR DR
original maturity of less than three —@AzZEEAEH
months when acquired TR 18 108,622 -
348,357 197,059

AFEEEERAERDA —ZT-—AFFH



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 155 S 5= I 5
31 December 2016
HE_T—XR"F+-_A=+—BLEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered address of
the Company is located at Canon’'s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Units 3301-03,
33/F, West Tower Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was in involved in the following
principal activities:

° Operation of peer-to-peer (“P2P") financing platform
under the “CAIJIA” brand and other loan facilitation
services

° Money lending and provision of credit

° Securities investments

° Provision of corporate secretarial and consultancy

services (disposed during the year)
° Forestry business (disposed during the year)
In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Allied

Summit Inc., which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI").

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Hz-2

4= —=

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016
—ANEF+ZA=+—HLEFE

RAREEER (&)

CopE PR

ARABEEWMBRARZFHFBET :

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the
Name business capital Company Principal activities
FMEL
£% AR BRTLE /AMRE XATEERZEIL FTEH
Direct Indirect
B SF:3
Best Harvest Asia Limited® BVI/Hong Kong United States Dollars 100% - Securities trading
EHEIMERRAC EEBRZES /B ("USD") 1 EHER
1% 7T
Joy Wealth Finance Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars 100% - Money lending
EMUBAERAR &8 ("HK$") 1 BE
1T
Pacific Vision Advisory Services Limited® Hong Kong HK$1 N/A N/A  Provision for corporate secretarial
B HARB AR RS &8 1% TER Ti#EFMA  and consultancy services
RECEREREARE
Profit Grand Enterprises Limited" ® © BVI usD170 N/A N/A Investment holding
("Profit Grand") HBELES 170% T i A TEA REER
BRI EABRAR (TR 50
I-Sky Natural Resources (PNG) Limited"*® Independent State of ~ Papua New Guinean Kina N/A N/A Forestry business
(“I-Sky Natural”) Papua New Guinea (“PGK") 100 NER THER RWES
("PNG") 1008 71 22 37 # M 35 B 4y
EmhHENEELE
((BREHERNE])
Beijing Huiju Wealth Management People's Republic of Renminbi (“RMB") = 96% Operation of an internet financing
Consultant Company Limited* 3 © China (“PRC") 50,000,000 platform
LTRERMEERARAERATC FEEARHEAE A R #50,000,0007T BREEHMBRETA
([ El)
Chongging KangDingAo Financing PRC UsD1,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in relation
Consulting Co. Limited#? © H 1,000,0003 T to the promotion and
EERSAMBARAERATC application of the internet
financing platform
REEEREREHERETS
18 7 IR 75
Chengdu Subang Management Consulting  PRC USD1,000,000 = 96% Provision of services in relation
Co. Limited#2 6 # 1,000,000% T to the promotion and

RHBEEEEANERRA

AFAFBEEEZERAR QA

application of the internet
financing platform

RUEEREAEHAERE
FAaE@E RS



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 s 2% Y &

31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

RAREEER (&)

iip:= PNCIE-E 1€ ))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Name business capital Company Principal activities
3y
£% A REES BRTLE /AMRE XAADEGCEZEIX ZEER
Direct Indirect
HE B
Shenyang Subang Management Consulting PRC USD1,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in
Co. Limited#2 ¢ A 1,000,000 7T relation to the promotion
BEREERBNERAAC and application of the
internet financing platform
RUKEREREHBERE
TREBARB
Kunming Subang Enterprise Management PRC RMB6,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in
Co. Limited*?® s A R%6,000,0007T relation to the promotion
ERRECEERARDRSS and application of the
internet financing platform
RUEKEREREHERE
TaEERE
Shenzhen Subang Management Consulting PRC RMB10,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in
Co. Limited*? ¢ h A FE#10,000,0007T relation to the promotion
RINEEEBRERERAFC and application of the
internet financing platform
RUKEREREHAERE
FEEBRB
Wuxi Subang Management Consulting Co.  PRC RMB6,000,000 - 96% Provision of services in
Limited*3 B A R%6,000,0007T relation to the promotion
ERREEEFABARARSS and application of the
internet financing platform
RUKEREREHBERME
TAaEERE
Shanghai Yugong Financial Consulting Co., PRC RMB1,050,000 = 96% Provision of loan facilitation
Limited# 46 H A R #1,050,0007T services
LEEDRBEEABRAT 0 REERFN RS
Katar Global Limited® BVI UsD1,000 - 96% Provision of loan facilitation
MERIKAR AR RERELES 1,000% 7T services
REBERHNRE
# The English names of the Chinese entitles are translation of their & RAKZE  PREB2AXEBREPXEBE

Chinese names and are included herein for identification purpose

only.
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1. Those companies are non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
and accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the
Company's control over them.

2. These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under PRC law.

3. These entities are registered as limited liability companies under PRC
law.

This entity was incorporated during the year.

5. These entities were disposed during the year. Further details are
included in note 28 to the financial statements.

6. Not audited by Zenith CPA Limited.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group is committed to make
capital contributions as registered share capital to certain of
its subsidiaries in the PRC of RMB8,900,000 and
RMB5,000,000 by 12 October 2035 and 28 October 2065,
respectively.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for certain of equity investments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

1.

2.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 s 2% Y &

31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements:

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation
Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint
Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
(2011) Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements 2012—
2014 Cycle

2.1

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 s 2% Y &

31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Other than as explained below, the adoption of the above
new and revised standards has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments

clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1,

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit
or loss and the statement of financial position
may be disaggregated,

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in
which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals are
presented in the statement of financial position and
the statement of profit or loss. The amendments have
had no significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that
are consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate plant and equipment and may only be used
in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible
assets. The amendments are applied prospectively.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group
has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.

The HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments allow entities to use
the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements. Entities already applying
HKFRSs and electing to change to the equity method
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in their separate financial
statements are required to apply the change
retrospectively. The amendments are not applicable to
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are as
follows:

o HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes
to a plan of sale or a plan of distribution to
owners should not be considered to be a new
plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the
original plan. Accordingly, there is no change in
the application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
The amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of
classification of the non-current assets or
disposal group held for sale. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group did not have any change in the
plan of sale or disposal method in respect of the
disposal group held for sale during the year.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE E s

31 December 2016
BE-_Z—XF+-_A=+t—HILEE

22 S BRRBRESHE 2B E (8

RFFBEEEZERARDA

ELGTEAE16ERE B @ L
FIBFRIETABBERE B &R
F16E BB S EREIBHEP 2R
B B EZRMEEEBELE L
B (BEAREP—HMHERX M
B BFEAZEE B ICERNZE -
i WEEBRETEARBE R
REBEIWE  EUREBRBRZER
THHEEFLEE - ZFSBIIABRER
BHEEER BRAEERTE
HIRBEEZTESRLT REAK
EEBRE MREEITATEE AR
SEZHBRAKNKBEKREIMAE
@,

EREFERE2TR(ZF——F) &
RIAATERNE L VB RN AR
BEBRHBLAR 2 LE KB
ERAZHREAR -CERBERY
BHRELEAREELNSNBILYB
BRAEBEDEZERBERR - &
LhEENBERRZREARZE
BEAEBYPERBAHEY - RFER]
ATEARAEB ZRAPBERE ©

N-ZE—WNF+BEM2[EEHH
RERA —F——F 2 - F—FH
HFENE|SEZBEE BTG R
EEBN BTN c ZEBIAZFHE
R

s AABUBMEERAESR/FFE
HEZHRBEERBKIE
XY BEEHRLEZE
HAHEBADIKZETE G
BRFHLEE MERE
ArElZEE - At - BAER
IR EERELE < R E AL E
BE o %FBIATES &
BHEETETEREKIERD
EERFELEZLEARN D
BzAH - ZFBIAKRE
HEEER -BANAKEER
FELEZHERR 2 B ER
BHEE AR FERL EEM
B WRFEEIATEHAE
SEERERTE -

TE-REFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

175 ¥R R M 5

31 December 2016

BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)  (Continued)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Clarifies that the disclosures in respect of the
offsetting of financial assets and financial
liabilities in HKFRS 7 are not required in the
condensed interim financial statements, except
where the disclosures provide a significant
update to the information reported in the most
recent annual report, in which case the
disclosures should be included in the condensed
interim financial statements. The amendments
are not applicable to the Group’'s annual
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a
fee can constitute continuing involvement in a
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature
of the fee and arrangement against the guidance
for continuing involvement in HKFRS 7 in order
to assess whether the HKFRS 7 disclosures are
required. The assessment of which servicing
contracts constitute continuing involvement must
be done retrospectively. However, the required
disclosures need not be provided for any period
beginning before the annual period in which the
entity first applies the amendments. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not have any servicing
contracts.

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits: Clarifies that
market depth of high quality corporate bonds
used for discounting the post-employment
benefit obligation for defined benefit plans is
assessed based on the currency in which the
obligation is denominated, rather than the
country where the obligation is located. When
there is no deep market for high quality
corporate bonds in that currency, government
bond rates must be used. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group as the Group does
not have any defined benefit plans.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

2.3

(d)

(Continued)

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: Clarifies
that the required interim disclosures must either
be in the interim financial statements or
incorporated by cross-reference between the
interim financial statements and wherever they
are included within the interim financial report.
The amendment also specifies that the
information within the interim financial report
must be available to users on the same terms
as the interim financial statements and at the
same time. The amendment is not applicable to
the Group's annual consolidated financial
statements.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements:

Amendments to

Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions?
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue

HKFRS 15 from Contracts with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases?®
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative’
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses’

> 0w N o

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard upon
adoption and expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will
have an impact on the classification and measurement of
the Group's financial assets.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for application now.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15
to address the implement issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent
and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018
and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment property in
HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased to
reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will
also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease
term and change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the financial
statements. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2017.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

88

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets and goodwill), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’'s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Plant and equipment and depreciation

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvement  Over the shorter of period of the

lease terms and 20%
Furniture, fittings and 20% to 33%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The wuseful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Purchased licenses and trading rights with infinite live are
stated at cost less any impairment loss and no amortisation
is provided.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other expenses for loans and receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of
profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income and gains in
accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment less than cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables and
receipt in advance.
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31 December 2016
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEBRE(H)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible notes, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible notes; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) Income from the rendering of services, when the
services are rendered;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEBRE(H)

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses on securities with reference
to the prices ruling at the end of the reporting period;

(c) Interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

(d)  Dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless the fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the shares options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless
the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will continue to be held in share option reserve.

Other employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’'s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs, depending on the
location of the subsidiaries of their payroll costs depending
on the location of the subsidiaries of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

AFAFBEEEZERAR QA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE E s

31 December 2016
BE-_Z—XF+-_A=+t—HILEE

24 FESHTHEHME(H)

IR BERASRE)

i) 8 A HE JE 7T 3 - R S A 0 B P
REKERERMDGE  WBRER

5 8 B H R SO W E R B B D R AT

158 RIS B 20 BB R 1 1 RE AR 2 KRS A

BRBRERBIRE -

Hitt g &8 7

AEEREBRBIEAESFEERY - BE
FrERERLATHRZBHELTER R
REME((EEEHE)  RiERES
%%Zﬁ%'fﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁ$ g7 B 2 —

BOLEE - UREMERIERERNAR -

ﬁ%iﬁﬂZéEﬁMﬁia@%iﬁﬁ
HAREEZEENFARFKA - AKERRE
TEFEIBMEEERRR  ZFHRAEH
BEEMA -

AEBRTPERLELEWBERARZESR
BE2NHAEMTRFER ZH#—EARes
gl - ZENB AR M&EE%QKKZ%
FEAOLASK —RKSFTE R - fEREE
BURRKMBABIFEMEEF LKA - #
T/\ﬁ/\i‘zizﬁ”%—EW%J*‘J%EE'JF_HH ME
= 7= fBR

& & A
PERERAREEMMBIERX - FE
KRABEERBMREABEMELEZNE R
H AR A -

TE-REFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 s 2% Y &

31 December 2016
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less
than a majority of voting rights

Profit Grand was a subsidiary of the Group despite the fact
that the Group had only 30% equity interest of the Profit
Grand and its subsidiary, I-Sky Natural (the "Profit Grand
Group”). The Group obtained the control over the majority
composition of the board of directors of Profit Grand and
51% of the total voting rights in the general meetings of
Profit Grand, in which they control the relevant activities of
the Group. After assessment, the directors concluded that
the Group had control over the Profit Grand Group, which
was disposed during the year.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognised movements of their fair values in equity. When
the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. At 31 December 2016, impairment loss of
HK$11,280,000 have been recognised for available-for-sale
investments (2015: Nil). Further details are given in note 15
to the financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. Further details are given in note 13 to
the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of loan and interest receivables

The Group establishes, through charges against the
statement of profit or loss, impairment allowances in
respect of estimated incurred loss in loan and interest
receivables. The allowances consist of individual impairment
allowances. The overall impairment allowances represent
the aggregate amount by which the management considers
necessary to write-down its loan portfolio in order to state
it in the consolidated statement of financial position at its
estimated net recoverable value.

In determining individual impairment allowances,
management considers objective evidence of impairment.
When loan receivable is impaired, an individual impairment
allowance is assessed by a discounted cash flow method,
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

In determining collective impairment allowances,
management uses estimates based on historical experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade and other receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. This assessment is based on the credit history
of the customers and other debtors and the current market
condition. The directors reassess the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

3.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has five
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Loan facilitation services: operation of P2P financing
platform under the CAIJIA brand and other loan
facilitation services;

(b)  Money lending: money lending and provision of credit
for interest income;

(c)  Securities investments: trading of securities and
investment in long-term securities;

(d)  Consultancy services: provision of corporate secretarial
and consultancy services; and

(e)  Forestry business: forest logging and harvesting.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before
tax except that bank interest income, gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and finance costs, as well as head office and
corporate income and expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax

liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XR"F+-_A=+—HULEE

4. REIHER B

(Continued)
Loan
facilitation Money Securities Consultancy Forestry
Year ended 31 December 2016 services lending investments services business Total
BX
BE-_Z—-X"F+=-HA=+—-HLEFE A IR BE BERE BHBRE HFHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FTHET
Segment revenue ol L g
Revenue from external REINARREZ
customers W & 490,662 64,374 - 350 - 555,386
Segment results o EEE 390,504 64,406 23,036 (1,376) (5) 476,565
Reconciliation: ol
Bank interest income RAITH B A 1,150
Gain on disposal of HEWNBARZ
subsidiaries Uz 16,201
Corporate and other AR REM
unallocated expenses Fial i (71,562)
Profit before tax R B4 A1 A 422,354
Other segment STAGREEERZ
information included in Hith 5 B E R
consolidated statement
of profit or loss
Depreciation e 3,984 12 = = - 3,996
Dividend income f& B4 A = = (4,193) = - (4,193)
Gain on disposal of HE R &
available-for-sale &z W
investments = = (30,189) = = (30,189)
Impairment of available-for- AJ 4 H} & & &
sale investments B = = 11,280 = = 11,280
Impairment of E i FE W 5K IE
other receivables B 1,941 - - - - 1,941
Loss on disposal of items of & B E & & H
plant and equipment HEZEE 9,949 - - - - 9,949
Capital expenditure* & 2B X * 301 - - - - 301
AEFEZEEZERERAR —ZE—AEFW
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31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFHFERH)
(Continued)
Loan
facilitation Money Securities  Consultancy Forestry
Year ended 31 December 2015 services lending  investments services  business Total
B
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=Z=+—BLFE N R BE BHEE BHARYE FTHREH 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAET FAET FAT FAET
Segment revenue pal g
Revenue from external REINARFZ
customers W & 34,740 66,457 - 1,293 - 102,490
Segment results D EE 3,810 80,014 62,754 (3,823) (243,948)  (101,193)
Reconciliation: HE -
Bank interest income RATH B A 107
Gain on disposal of HENBARZ
subsidiaries Wz 198
Finance costs A& AR (99)
Corporate and other AR REM
unallocated expenses Fwal b (42,888)
Loss before tax B iRl E 1B (143,875)
Other segment SFAGREREERZ
information included in Hith 5 3B & %
consolidated statement
of profit or loss
Depreciation nE 1,007 - - - - 1,007
Dividend income f& 84 A - - (57,425) - - (57,425)
Gain on disposal of HE R E
available-for-sale ®E W=
investments - - (5,550) - - (5,550)
Impairment of deposit for ~ EUFKARKFTI#E 2
acquisition of logging R&RE

concession = = = = 190 190

Impairment of goodwill EmERE = = = - 239,000 239,000
Loss on disposal of items of &M= & &

plant and equipment BEZERE 40 = = = = 40
Reversal of impairment of  J&ULE 2 & Fl B

loan and interest E#E

receivables - (12,690) - o - (12,690)
Capital expenditure* & 2B X * 18,584 = = = - 18,584
v Capital expenditure consists of additions to plant and equipment i BARAIBEAERELZE  EFBREXRE

WEMBRRZEE -

including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFTER (8)
(Continued)
Loan
facilitation Money Securities Consultancy
31 December 2016 services lending investments services Total
EX
—Z-A"E+=ZA=+-—H A IR % BE BERE B RS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET FET FE T
Segment assets PWEE 2,441,052 889,234 781,170 - 4,111,456
Reconciliation: HER -
Tax recoverable BEEE R 5,549
Corporate and other AR & E A
unallocated assets RHBLEE 24,654
Total assets BEEBE 4,141,659
Segment liabilities PHEE 10,842 - - - 10,842
Reconciliation: HE -
Tax payable FEBIR 47,179
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEBE 78
Corporate and other AR & EA
unallocated liabilities AOBEEE 2,491
Total liabilities BEBLE 60,590
Loan
facilitation Money Securities Consultancy
31 December 2015 services lending investments services Total
ER
—Z-Af%+-A=+—H B R B&E BHRIRE H AR FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT FHT TAT
Segment assets DEEE 2,387,768 622,326 1,149,327 1,678 4,160,999
Reconciliation: k-
Tax recoverable Y E IR 2,174
Corporate and other unallocated 72 & % E 4t
assets ADBEE 17,078
Total assets EE®E 4,180,251
Segment liabilities DEBEE 17,247 - - 81 17,328
Reconciliation: #HE:
Tax payable FE 3 B TE 22,628
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBARE 304
Corporate and other unallocated 22 &)} E A
liabilities AAEREE 4,639
Total liabilities BELE 44,899

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Geographical information

4, REFTER (8)
& & B

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMREEZNE ERBEE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-REFE ZE—RF Z—E-RE ZE—I1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET FETT
Hong Kong &5 62,606 67,750 679 1,947
Mainland China AR A 492,780 34,740 2,184,892 2,199,712
555,386 102,490 2,185,571 2,201,659
The revenue information is based on the location of ”Y?&?ﬁﬂ%@ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁ‘?3F5ﬁ§bﬁf
customers. The non-current assets are based on the EREEMEMA/AKBERTEEAIMHEE

locations of the assets and exclude available-for-sale
investments.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$284,766,000 (2015: HK$23,110,000)
representing 51% (2015: 23%) of the Group’s total revenue,
were derived from loan facilitation services and money
lending segments to three customers (2015: two
customers), including services provided by a group of
entities which are known to be under common control with
these customers. A summary of revenue earned from each
of these major customers and segments is set out below:

wE

FRETERXEFZEH

o

284,766,000/8 7T (—F — A% : 23,110,000
BIL) 2 W (AR BRI E 251% (ZF
—hHF:28%)KREERFNREREED
HA=2BF(ZE-—HF MEEF) I

W% - BEA—HEEM

-

HZERPRXHK

Rl cBERBREHR LIRS - EBR2ZFE
EEPEDARBR WA EHIIMNT

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—RF
Loan facilitation Money lending Money lending
services segment segment Total segment
B RN IRE 2 5 EBED Bt Rl
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FH& T
Customer A EFH 147,500 = 147,500  N/A* Ti@E R *
Customer B BERL N/A* 7 3@ A * N/A* T FH*  N/A* RER* 12,310
Customer C EFA N/A* 7~ 38 3 * N/A* @ A*  N/A* RER* 10,800
Customer D 22FET 69,449 = 69,449  N/A* T i A+
Customer E BRI 67,500 317 67,817  N/A* TNEF*
284,449 317 284,766 23,110

& The corresponding revenue of these customers is not disclosed as * ZEBPZHEBR ST ETARE  REAK

they individually did not contribute over 10% of the Group's total
revenue for the year.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

EXARNFALEERMASEZRE 210% A
ko



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016
ME-ZT-~ET-A=+-ALFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. iz HbW ARz

Y 25 58 A () A B 0N m R 4K 8 P2P R B T
B M E A E SR TBR A Pr iR HR A 2 e

Revenue represents (i) the net invoiced value of services
rendered from operation of P2P financing platform under

the CAIJIA brand and other loan facilitation services; (ii)

JE Uk 2% 220 (E 5 (i) f

P
B E

ERHEEEERR

gross proceeds from money lending and provision of credit; FEUWRFTS s IB A% iRt E¥EWMER
and (i) gross proceeds from provision of corporate BARBEWREWATSRIBRE -

secretarial and consultancy services received and receivable

during the vyear.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as e Bt ARKE 20T :
follows:
2016 2015
ZE-AF —E-NhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Revenue i 25
Interest income from loan receivables FE W E R B A 64,374 66,457
Loan facilitation services income ERAEMTRBEEA 490,662 34,740
Consultancy services income RIS A 350 1,293
555,386 102,490
2016 2015
ZE-AF —E-N1F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 77 FTET FAET
Other income and gains Hablg A & U=
Bank interest income RITF B U A 1,150 107
Reversal of impairment of loan B E K EF B
and interest receivables 2 B B 16 - 12,690
Dividend income from available- A/t HERE Z KB
for-sale investments /N 4,193 57,425
Gain on disposal of available-for- HERHEERE ~
sale investments (transfer from W (PMHERBER
equity on disposal of 58 4330,291,0007% 7T
HK$30,291,000 (2015: —E—HRF:
HK$5,582,000), net of 5,682,000/ 7T) - &N
transaction costs) bR 32 5 K AR) 30,189 5,550
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & T B A E 2 W as 28 16,201 198
Others Hth 1,689 1,130
53,422 77,100
AFEFBEERBBAR —E—AEFH
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BBAEFR (EHE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REBZBRBAES (BB RNBRUAT
charging: FIHEBEN:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—HF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHET FET
Cost of services provided RS2 KR 781 1,418
Depreciation e 12 4,339 1,268
Impairment of goodwill* EEAEN 13 - 239,000
Impairment of available-for-sale A HERERE
investments* 11,280 -
Impairment of other receivables* b fiE U 2k T8 5 (& * 1,941 -
Impairment of deposit for S R EFRT#E 2
acquisition of logging RERmE"
concession* = 190
Minimum lease payments under KZEHEE 2
operating leases &IEMBEERE 19,720 5,854
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 1,500 1,600
Employee benefit expenses EERAAXZ
(excluding directors’ and chief (TBRREEEEkE®
executive’s remuneration T A B 2 % B
(note 7)): (Htet7))
- Wages and salaries - ITERES 67,101 29,352
- Pension scheme contributions - B K& 5+ & £ & 13,653 5,743
82,572 35,095
Foreign exchange differences, net [E } %= 58 %58 742 2,126
Loss on disposal of items of plant HEMENZEEE 2
and equipment* BB 9,949 40
@ Items are included in “other expenses” in the consolidated statement * ZERERERGARARAZHMEX] -

of profit or loss.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 7. EERBRSTHABEMH
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BEBXAESFEMARAUTERRA]) -
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of BB QBB ZE383(1)(@) * (b) () K (f) 1§
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), URABI(HBEESHZER) RO E25
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong BWEZFANEERESTBRABHMOT

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contribution remuneration
Fe Rl RBAREFTE
e REYEARN = = ER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET FHET
2016: ZE-REF:
Executive directors: BWITESE:
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu EEBELE - - - -
Mr. Liang Jian Hua REELE - - - -
Ms. Jia Hui B+ - - - -
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren B-AraE = = = =
Independent non-executive B JEHITE E
directors:
Mr. Wong Chun Hung HEERE 240 - - 240
Mr. Zheng Zhen o 18 9 A 120 - - 120
Mr. To Langa Samuelson BRIk A 120 - - 120
4380 = = 430
Chief executive: R T AR
Ms. Yu Yang' KRG LT - 1,800 18 1,818
4380 1,800 18 2,298

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 7. EERBSITHRAEHEM®)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Fees
HK$'000
FET
2015: —E-—RE:
Executive directors: WITEE:
Mr. Huang Chuan Fu EEEBLEE -
Mr. Liang Jian Hua REELLE -
Ms. Jia Hui EExL -
Mr. Jiang Yi Ren B—1EEAE -
Independent non-executive directors: BN ERITES:
Mr. Wong Chun Hung =LA 240
Mr. Zheng Zhen B 18 5 A& 120
Mr. Lau Yiu Tung? 2 mR S 19
Mr. To Lange Samuelson? T BA N ot A3 99
478
478
' Appointed on 20 January 2016 T RZE-RFE-AZTHEZE
2 Resigned on 27 February 2015 : R-ZE-—RE-_A-++tBEE
3 Appointed on 4 March 2015 3 RZE—RF=-ANAEZE
There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the FAVTEBNKENES2HME (=
directors during the year (2015: Nil). T—FHE: )
There were no arrangement under which a director or the FRAYEITUEFSIRSTHRABEE I
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration BMEXREREAATH 2 LH(ZF —
during the year (2015: Nil). RE &)
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. HEBEHEER

The five highest paid employees during the year included FANhEGRRFEERBEE —BITHAH
one chief executive (2015: none), details of whose (ZZE—hF  \)(E a5 850 Bt
remuneration are set out in note 7 above. Details of the 27 B TITUE(ZE—RAF AL WIEAR
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2015: five) RAEFXAERSTHRAEBZE=HEER
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief FAZHMEFBOT:

executive of the Company are as follows:

2016 2015
=F-AF —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FE T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEBEYWEF 6,276 3,072
Performance related bonus KB MIEA 2,054 2,879
Pension scheme contributions RREFHEIH R 90 90
8,420 6,041

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest FMNFUTHEZIEENIIFERTR

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the AEZBERFHEEZ AHUOT:

following bands is as follows:

Number of individuals

A
2016 2015
—E-A%  ~T-EF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T 1,500,000/ 7T - 2
HK$1,5600,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7L £2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,000,001 7T £3,500,0005% 7T 1 -
4 5

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEHEAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEBNNEH IR EFRARBEBEA ZGFE
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits R R MIR16.5% (ZZE—AF 1 16.5%) 2
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits TRERGTIR B - AR ERT SR 28
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of BEASEKEMERDEAER 2BITRE
tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group FrE -
operates.
Subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to the PRC AR BRI 2 M B A B B IR R E R E25%
corporate income tax at the standard rate of 25%, except BMPECEMGH - E—RHNB ARG
for one of the subsidiaries was registered as an information MEEARBGES EFREHE_ZT=-F
services enterprise and subject to the PRC corporate FHZA=ZT—HILEEFZERB &M%
income tax at a rate of 15% on its assessable profits for TE1D% BN EMREMN -

the seven years ended 31 December 2020.

Withholding tax represented withholding tax paid in respect EHRERANESERLREBBRINCEP
of the Group's income from the provision of loan facilitation REEXRFNRBE2BAECT BN -
services to customers who were located outside Hong
Kong.
2016 2015
—E-AF —E—h0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Current — Hong Kong BNHR - &%
Charge for the year FREZH - 5,580
Under/(over)-provision in BEFERBIR
prior years (B EE) 1,002 (40)
1,002 5,540
Current — PRC BNAR — AR
Charge for the year FREZH 44,559 423
Underprovision in prior years BAFERBTR 955 -
45,514 423
Withholding tax TEME 43,000 -
Deferred (note 21) iIEJE (K7 a221) (226) -
Total tax charge for the year FRFHIEL H B 89,290 5,963
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1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016
—ANEF+ZA=+—HLEFE

HEZZ

FRr 8 BB (50

BARRREBAEREEZZEREFE

before tax at the statutory rate of Hong Kong, where the ZBRBREF S (EE)#E B2 R IER S H
Company is headquartered, to the tax expense are as BRERZ 2HEOT:
follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RE C—E-IfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AR R (B R) 422,354 (143,875)
Tax charged/(credit) at the Hong Kong & & B A FH R16.5%1 & >
statutory tax rate of 16.5% BMmEZH(E ) 69,688 (23,739)
Difference in tax rates of subsidiaries HREMAZEEREEZHNBARZ
operating in other jurisdictions HExzR 14,783 (230)
Expenses not deductible for tax A HO0F A & 2,061 40,449
Income not subject for tax BAERBBA (43,134) (10,423)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIEERE 882 130
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFEBREIR
prior years (EBEEEMB) 1,957 (40)
Withholding tax a0 43,000 -
Others Hth 53 (184)
Tax charge at the Group's BAEEEBRME211% (ZE—F
effective rate of 21.1% (2015: -4.1%) F i -41%) FEBHEZ S 89,290 5,963
DIVIDEND 10. &2
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended HE-_Z—X"F+-A=+—HLFER
31 December 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed WERNKEZRNRKRE  BmEHRNA
since the end of the reporting period (2015: Nil). RKNMEEZZRENEANRE(ZZE—AF:
) o
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 11. B ARIEEBRERSEEAELER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BR,(E8E)
PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARAN (BB 28R E
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the vyear ARAERERBEAERBLEFANR
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the MABERFANERTT K NE

weighted average number of ordinary shares of
3,424,201,000 (2015: 2,782,102,000) in issue during the
year.

RKPFEXEZERERAR —F—X

F 19 813,424,201,00008 (= T — 7 F:
2,782,102,0000% ) 5t & -
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31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

1.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 11. A& ﬁ*gﬁﬁ]’iﬁkﬂg‘fﬁﬁﬂn
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BR(BE)
PARENT (Continued)
The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share EREERF (BB ENRES QR
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the vyear L im %fﬁ?—rﬁ/\ﬁgfﬁim}ﬁﬂ/(@ﬂé)§+
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The BoHEMBEBRNEFTEIERAFNA
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the BEITERRKREE (Eﬂ)ﬂﬁ(‘d’%ﬁlﬂﬁgm
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during aF,/(EBE)E) LA&TE““E"?)?E@ET%E
the year, as used in the basic earnings/(loss) per share EEBREERDITENER AL AR
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary EEEET 2L ARMETFSE -
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per BREARBERF (EB)IERT
share are based on: KIFEHE -
2016 2015
—E—RF —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FE T
Earnings/(loss): B (F8):
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity ARsTESRELRK
holders of the parent, used in the basic BEAEN(BBR)ZE
and diluted earnings/(loss) per share NEIEBE=TAAR
calculations s A, (B 18) 321,907 (148,282)
Number of shares
g =
2016 2015
—E—XKE —E—REF
Shares: &1 :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR :FEFREREF]
in issue during the year used in the basic (BB ZFRNBEETE
earnings/(loss) per share calculation B 8% hn #E 39 E 3,424,201,000 2,782,102,000

By 488

Effect of dilution — weighted average number #58 > 52 £ - ¥ @ iK%
hn#E 0
o8 il MR R R R

of ordinary shares:
Mandatory convertible notes

11,357,901,000 -

14,782,102,000 2,782,102,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016
ME-ZT-~ET-A=+-ALFE

12. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. BMERKE
Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and Motor
31 December 2016 improvement equipment vehicles Total
HEWE HEWR -£E
—E-XRE+ZHA=t+—8 #1E R&E RE 4 Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTHET FET
At 31 December 2015 and RZ-ZT—HF
at 1 January 2016: +-—A=+—H8kK
—EF-R"F¥-A—H8:
Cost (DN 11,355 10,428 778 22,561
Accumulated RETE
depreciation (2,955) (1,259) (545) (4,759)
Net carrying amount BRME ¥ 8,400 9,169 233 17,802
At 1 January 2016, net of RZE—XF—H—H
accumulated depreciation LR RFTINE 8,400 9,169 233 17,802
Additions NE 20 1,084 - 1,174
Disposals & (5,992) (4,686) = (10,678)
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B AR (M iF28)
(note 28) - (464) (139) (603)
Depreciation provided during N T 29T & (#/ 7£6)
the year (note 6) (1,784) (2,461) (94) (4,339)
Exchange realignment & X 3% (228) (220) - (448)
At 31 December 2016, net K- ZT— X4
of accumulated +=-—A=+—H
depreciation BHRRFINE 486 2,422 - 2,908
At 31 December 2016: RZZT—REF
+=—A=+—H”
Cost X A 3,481 5,148 = 8,629
Accumulated 2t E
depreciation (2,995) (2,726) = (5,721)
Net carrying amount IR EF R 486 2,422 - 2,908

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 s 2% Y &

31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

12. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 12. BMERRE®)

Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and Motor
31 December 2015 improvement  equipment vehicles Total
MEWME KM EHE
—E-hFE+ZHA=+—H K& R ! MEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAT FAET
At 1 January 2015: RZE—RF—H—A8:
Cost X A 2,500 740 778 4,018
Accumulated 2 E
depreciation (2,500) (602) (389) (3,491)
Net carrying amount BRE FE - 138 389 527
At 1 January 2015, net of WZZE—HAF—HF—H -
accumulated depreciation LR EFITE - 138 389 527
Additions NE 95 572 - 667
Disposals & - (40) - (40)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ut B& ki BB A 7] (A7 i£26)
(note 26) 9,032 9,370 - 18,402
Depreciation provided during 4 A 5t 2 47 & (47 i16)
the year (note 6) (455) (657) (156) (1,268)
Exchange realignment PE W (272) (214) - (486)
At 31 December 2015, net W-Z—H4F
of accumulated +—A=+—8"
depreciation LR RFTINE 8,400 9,169 233 17,802
At 31 December 2015: RZE—HF
+=—A=+—8:
Cost DN 11,355 10,428 778 22,561
Accumulated REtinE
depreciation (2,955) (1,259) (545) (4,759)
Net carrying amount BR ¥R 8,400 9,169 233 17,802
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016
ME-ZT-~ET-A=+-ALFE

13. GOODWILL 13. B8
Total
et
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 January 2015: RZE—RF—H—AQ:
Cost (DN 306,019
Accumulated impairment 2R E (67,019)
Net carrying amount R FE 239,000
Cost at 1 January 2015, RZE—RF—A—BzZHA&
net of accumulated impairment ANk RETRE 239,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 26) BB 2B (B it26) 2,182,663
Impairment during the year (note 6) FNRAE(HTiE6) (239,000
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE-—RF+_-_A=+—H 2,182,663
At 31 December 2015: RZE—RF+ZHA=+—8:
Cost X A 2,488,682
Accumulated impairment 25 E (306,019)
Net carrying amount AR EF R 2,182,663
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of accumulated AZE—ARF—RA—HZKRAE:
impairment AR RETRE 2,182,663
Attributable to disposal of subsidiaries (note 28) HEM B AR’ (M 7F28) -
Cost and net carrying amount as at RZE—RE+_A=+—H2Z
31 December 2016 B A K B T SRR 2,182,663
At 31 December 2016: RZBE-—RE+ZA=+—81:
Cost X A 2,182,663
Accumulated impairment 25 RE =
Net carrying amount AR EF R 2,182,663

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 s 2% Y &

31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

13.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the following cash-generating units for
impairment testing:

“Loan

- Loan facilitation cash-generating unit (the

Facilitation CGU"); and

- Forestry cash-generating unit (the “Forestry CGU").

Loan Facilitation CGU

The recoverable amount of the Loan Facilitation CGU has
been determined by value in use approach adopted by BMI
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified valuer, based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

o Average revenue growth rate of 3.11% (2015: 30.41%)
with reference to the average performance in the past
and the expected returns within the relevant industry;

° Discount rate of 17.43% (2015: 18.79%) is used with
reference to the current market data for the relevant
industry and comparable companies; and

o Terminal growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%) is used with
reference to the PRC’'s average inflation rate in the
past five years.

The values assigned to the above key assumption on
market development of loan facilitation services industry,
discount rates and inflation rate are consistent with external
information sources.

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report
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13.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Forestry CGU

In 2015, the Forestry GCU was attributable to the
acquisition of 30% equity interest in the Profit Grand Group
by Century Praise Limited, a 100% wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Profit Grand Group had been granted the
right to operate sawmills, harvest trees and sell logs in the
forest located in the PNG. Century Praise Limited and the
Profit Grand Group were disposed of during the year.

Upon the completion of acquisition in 2012, the Group
would intensively managed and operated their forest
industry in a plot of land being Potion 643C Milinch of
Goldie (NE) Kase (SE) Kokoda (SW) and Nisbet (NW)
Fourmil of Monresby and Buna in the Central Province of
PNG with the size of 65,800 hectares (the “Project Area”).
Details of which the acquisition is set out in the Company's
investment circular dated 29 February 2012.

Prior to the acquisition and on 30 May 2011, I-Sky Natural,
a directly owned subsidiary of Profit Grand, had entered
into a project agreement with Vabari Development
Corporation Limited (the “Landowners”) for a forest
development project in which forest logs would be
harvested for the purposes of sale and export and other
related activities incidental to and arising out of the project
in the Project Area (the “Vabari Agro-Forestry Project”).
Pursuant to the project agreement, I-Sky Natural was going
to acquire an agricultural lease, from the Landowners for a
term of 99 years.

In order to conduct forestry business and to enjoy and
exercise the logging concession in the PNG, [-Sky Natural
was also required to apply for the Forest Clearance
Authority granted by the Forest Authority of PNG (“FCA")
regarding lawful permission to clear forest areas and
harvest merchantable logs, and to prepare an Environment
Impact Statement (“EIS”) for the approval of Department of
Environment and Conservation (the “DEC"”), so as to
granting the environmental permit (“EP") regarding the
Project Area issued under the Environment Act 2000 of
PNG.

13. BE

RFFBEEEZERARDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE E s

31 December 2016
BE-_Z—XF+-_A=+t—HILEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

13.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Forestry CGU (Continued)

The first DEC Council meeting had been held in July 2013
and after several amendments of the EIS report of the
Vabari Agro-Forestry Project was finally accepted by the
DEC Council in September 2013. The DEC Council then
transmitted the Approval In Principle (“AIP") for
endorsement by the DEC Minister (the “Minister”) in
September 2013. However, the AIP could not be granted
before the end of 2013 despite of the continual request of
the status, meeting the local officials and pressure from the
Landowners.

In May 2014, the Secretary of the Landowners (the
“Secretary”) protested at the lobby of the DEC office for
the unexplained delay in granting the EP. The action
continued for three weeks but the Minister was busy at the
PNG Parliament session and had not shown up.

In the meantime, the Secretary still kept on giving pressure
to the DEC and finally they had the chance to meet the
Secretary of the Minister at his office in October 2014. The
Secretary had requested the meeting with the Minister but
he replied that the Minister was busy and not available for
the meeting. The Secretary then requested the granting of
the AIP and the explanation of the unreasonable delay. The
Secretary of the Minister advised that since all Special
Agricultural and Business Leases were under the review of
the Independent Review Committee, as a result, no AIP can
be granted during that time.

In 2015, the Secretary had further submitted a AIP follow-
up letter to the Minister's office and tried to make an
appointment but was advised that the Minister was once
again not available, and the officers could not give them a
proper answer of the AIP status because no instruction
was given by the Minister.
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13.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Forestry CGU (Continued)

In the light of the foregoing, the directors considered that
the aforesaid potential risks associated with the time
required for obtaining relevant licenses become
unreasonable and not optimistic that the application process
could be finalised in the foreseeable future, also, the
development of the Vabari Agro-Forestry Project were
highly uncertain and difficult to predict accurately due to
policy changes of the government as well as the changing
political environment in PNG in which they were out of the
Group’s control. Accordingly, a full provision for impairment
of HK$239,000,000 against the goodwill due to prolonged
period of non-performance in the Forestry CGU, was
charged to the consolidated statements of profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016
ME-ZT-~ET-A=+-ALFE

13. BE(E)

mERERNRE)
RMBE 2 EEE M (E)

EREXRE EERE - AREMHEH
ENTRNBERERBCARREZESH B AE
ErlirEEz s WEESHEERNRIE
BREABz EMEERBRBIARE  HE
BFetRaERRRERIT T8 - B
Vabari Agro-ForestryI8 B 2 % & 1% 4 1 87
BAESEHEREL - Al EREZR
—E-RAF+_A=Z+-BULEEEZHESE
BaXiIBhtEERAMAcELEEUR
HARKREMHRBENRE2HER
239,000,000 JT °

AR EAERESR 2 BELEASHE
m

Loan Facilitation CGU Forestry CGU Total

EXPNEESELEN ANBEESEEEN Bet
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-REFE ZE-RF ZEF-XRF ZE—OF ZE-RF ZZE—1nF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET FTHET FAET TET FAET

Carrying EmEZER®
amount of Gk

goodwill 2,182,663 2,182,663 N/A Fi#EH -  2182,663 2,182,663

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR
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31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B EE
Trading
31 December 2016 rights Licence Total
—E-AH¥+=A=+-—8H X5 J& B At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FiERT FET FET

Cost at 1 January 2016, net of RZE—RE—A—HZRA -

accumulated amortisation A bR RETHE 8 - 1,194 1,194
Additions NE 500 = 500
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 28)  H&EWE R A (4 :i728) (500) (1,194) (1,694)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H - - -
At 31 December 2016: RZE—RF+=—A=+—8:

Cost [N = - -
Accumulated amortisation REt#EE - - -
Net carrying amount BRE SR = = =
31 December 2015 Licence
ZE—hF+ZA=+—H he iR
HK$'000
FE T

Cost at 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015, RZE—RAF—A—BXK

net of accumulated amortisation —E-RAF+-A=ZFt—HZHE-

KB Rt 88 1,194
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016: RZE—RAF+-_A=+—HRK
—FE-R"FE-A—8:
Cost [N 1,194

Accumulated amortisation Eg § -

Net carrying amount BREF R 1,194
The licence represented the licence plate which enable the FERE AT EMN P EE W FET
vehicle to travel and hang licence plate in both PRC and St ERE o BB MR E 2 KA
Hong Kong. The licence was renewable every year at BEEBETHRATAEERFERAFH &R
minimal cost and they were considered as having an AAHEBHUERAARNEEEL£LET
indefinite useful life because it was expected to generate 7 o

economic benefit to the Group indefinitely.
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15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE E s

31 December 2016
BE-_Z—XF+-_A=+t—HILEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 14. BEEEH)
The trading rights represented the eligibility rights to trade RGEIENLBEBBIFIR G 28 EE#E
on or through the Stock Exchange and had no foreseeable - REAEEATRANREELEFRR HAR
limit to the period over which the Group could use to WAL FEA]TE R BRE| - Bt - FREIR SR
generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading rights ERPELAFRER WAEEEEER
were considered by the management of the Group as had RHER/REBEEAEHFH -
indefinite useful lives because they were expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
During the year, the license and the trading rights were RERN BREXZEHEHE  E—F
disposed and further details are set out in note 28 to the IBE N B WRERM 28 -
financial statements.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 15. AHHEERE
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current portion: EMBE D
Listed equity investments, at fair value R EEE -
/NS ] 718,465 1,127,088
Current portion: mEhE o
Unlisted fund trust investments FEMESETERE = 41,672

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the Group's
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$339,817,000 (2015:
gross gain of HK$430,367,000), of which HK$28,691,000
(2015: HK$5,582,000) was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the statement of profit or loss for
the year.

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate.

AFAFBEEEZERAR QA

FROREME2ERFIERZAEEA]H
HE R E 2 4 B 18 /339,817,000 T (=
T — R #U35430,367,000/8 7T) - He
28,691,000/ 7T (== — A4 : 5,5682,00078
mEBEBRHEtE2EARSET>BEEFRIE

LR EREEEATHEEEREEL
BAEHFKRE AEBEINHEXER

—E-XNEER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 s 2% Y &

31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

15.

16.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 15. JHEERE @)
(Continued)
There was a significant decline in the market value of ATLETRAIEE cTERFRNKRETK -
certain listed equity investment during the vyear. The EEREBEETRERZELTRAKE
directors consider that such decline indicates that the listed ERE TRFAZEZRBERBEEIE
equity investments have been impaired and an impairment 11,280,000 T (Z T — 1% &)(BHEH
loss of HK$11,280,000 (2015: Nil), which included a EH b2 HE s E o 21,600,000 7T
reclassification from other comprehensive income of ZE—RHFE)) -
HK$1,600,000 (2015: Nil), has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss for the year.
As at 31 December 2015, the unlisted fund trust R-ZE—RAFE+_-_A=+—H EELHE
investments with a carrying amount of HK$41,672,000 741,672,000 T2 EMESFEARE
were stated at cost less impairment because the range of DIREARBEYER  REAEGEAFE
reasonable fair value estimates was so significant that the HEHERRNER EREERRATE
directors were of the opinion that their fair value could not TR E - FELMESKEERFER
be measured reliably. The unlisted fund investments were B HR o
matured during the year.
LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 16. BEWERKEFE
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E-N1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Loan and interest receivables B E R RFE 878,079 555,180

The terms of loan entered with its customers are on credit.
The credit period is generally within one year, extending up
to two years, after monitoring assessment and further
creditworthiness analysis on the debtors reviewed by senior
management. The loan receivables carried at fixed interest
rate ranging from 9% to 15% (2015: 10% to 36%) per
annum. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s loan and
interest receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group held collateral or other credit
enhancements over its certain of its loan and interest
receivable balances.
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16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An aged analysis of the loan and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the
commencement of loan agreement entered and the date of
interest income accrued, and net of provisions, is as
follows:

16. B ERRF B (4

A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016
HE-_Z—XR"F+-_A=+—HULEE

WAL B & A B K R 7 B
AEERAHORIEE
BERRENGERBEZREDTAOT

W & R R A B R

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—HEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Within 30 days 30K N 145,026 74,046
30 to 90 days 30290k 93,026 360,825
91 to 180 days 91E180K 91,208 -
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 230,561 39,413
Over 365 days i B365K 318,258 80,896
878,079 555,180

The movements in provision for impairment of loan and EWEREMNE 2 REBEZSHOT -

interest receivables are as follows:
2016 2015
ZEB-AF —T—A1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAET
At beginning of year K - 30,984
Impairment losses reversed (note 5) BB BB E B (A its) = (12,690)
Amount written off as uncollectible i35 S A Bl 2 & B - (18,294)
AFEFBEERBBAR —E—AEFH
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31 December 2016
BE_Z—XRE+-A=+—HIEE

16.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aged analysis of the loan and interest receivables that
are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

16. EWEREFE (&)

I B RIS AR RREZ BRE R K
MBZHREITWT :

2016 2015

—E-KRF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Neither past due nor impaired BT #& i5 HA 7% R (B 453,650 468,894
Less than 30 days past due 1 HY D RR30K 93,026 5,390
30 to 90 days past due £ HI30E 90K 8,895 32,391
91 to 180 days past due # #H191£2180K = 3,605
181 to 365 days past due # #§1812 365K 283,086 -
Over 365 days past due i Hi #8 4B 365K 39,422 45,000
878,079 555,180

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that have a good track
record to the Group and they were subject to collateral for
listed shares, with a fair value of HK$63,600,000 (2015:
HK$90,390,000); convertible notes issued by a listed
company with fair value of HK$159,000,000 (2015:
253,500,000); and consumable goods with fair value of
HK$48,000,000 (2015: Nil).

Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of those receivables that were past
due but not impaired as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016
ME-ZT-~ET-A=+-ALFE

17. EWERFI R HEMERKRRIE

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—HEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Trade receivables JfE Uk BR 3% 670 40,791
Impairment B = (60)
670 40,731
Deposits %o 2,845 5,176
Prepayments SEEN 1,533 4,945
Other receivables (note) H W FRTE (Y At 590 4,567
4,968 14,688

Total trade and other receivables JE LA B 3 K E b FE LK
RIE B R 5,638 55,419

Note: Other receivables are either past due or impaired. The financial assets

included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally 30 to 90 days for its
trade receivables. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

BraE s EtREWRFORIY &S R E - FEA Lt
BHRZEMEER MDA BROLRZE

WHRIBEAR -

AEEEZFPZ2ESRREEZERTE - B
WER R 2 BRI — R M F30E90K » A&
B3 hEHE KW E 2 U8 4 RS E
ZoUBEERRAERE MeaREE
EoTrEMaBEs AR EEERA
EECERERSIERRETRATE @ BT
GEEERREEEFZER - AEET
ERERKEFIEHRFETMERMmE
HEEMBER - BWERATEE -

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17. FEUWRARFX R H 4 B WS TH (48)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of REZRHAERCHREEEZ BRI
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of R EHRZERDTEOT

provisions, is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 30 days 30K A = 3,147
31 to 60 days 31£260X 670 14,478
61 to 90 days 61£290K = 16,741
Over 90 days B #@90K = 6,365
670 40,731
The movements in provision for impairment of trade EWEESR 2 BEREESNT
receivables are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of year 4 7] 60 60
Impairment loss reversed BRI EEIE (60) =
= 60
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not I R Bl sk AR BRE 2 BRER 2
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as RE DT :
follows:
2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Neither past due nor impaired BE 48 480 BR U R (B - 101
Less than 30 days past due 1 HR D PR30 K 670 3,147
30 to 90 days past due # BI30E 90K = 14,377
Over 90 days past due B HA B iR 90 K - 23,106
670 40,731
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17.

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ok M 5

31 December 2016
BHE-_Z—A"F+-_A=+—HLEE

FE Wi B R B2 HL At FE U RRTE (48)

B 48780 H 7 4 ORUME 2 FE MR SR OR B AT B F 4R
BHRBCEFBR -

EREEREZEBUFELENRAEES
RUFEBREBEZERBURFAER - RE
BERR EEFRAR/BENLSTERATIR
HEHEE REAREEERYTEERED
B s sk E -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. BeRBEESEEY
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T T
Cash and bank balances He MIBITEHE S 239,735 197,059
Time deposits EHER 108,622 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReEKREEED 348,357 197,059

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$144,440,000 (2015: HK$96,660,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for others currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
period of seven days depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interests at the
respective short term time deposits rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

AFAFBEEEZERAR QA

RBRERR AEEUARBFEZRS
K 4R 17 45 84 5144,440,0008 T (Z 2 —F
£ : 96,660,000 7L) c ARBEAAIEH K
BAEHMER - BIRE R A INEE 2
BHR&EE EERMEEERTE A%
EEATEBREEREINEZES 2 RITH
ARBEHBBEME -

RITRESLTERITHERAXRBEUZ T
B BHEMERBRFAEENEREF
E GFRERLH REBEHTHER
M RBREA S - RITE R E BT RE R
MY EBENCHAGBAIE ZRTT -

—E-XNEER
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19.

20.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 19. Htt BN REREFEH
2016 2015
—B-RF —T—h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Other payables H & < 3B 9,657 10,783
Accruals FEETER 3,676 11,120
Receipt in advance TE W IR - 64
13,333 21,967
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an EmENREAE L  FHHR A —E
average term of one month. Ao
MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES 20. BFEIMUBRRESE

On 20 October 2015, the Company issued zero coupon rate
mandatory convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,400,000,000 (“MCN"), for the purpose of
satisfying the consideration of HK$2,400,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 20 May 2015 entered into between the Company,
the controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Vendor")
and the guarantor, to which the Company to acquire 96%
equity interest of Katar Global Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Katar Global Group”).

The MCN bear no interest and will mature on 19 October
2020 (the “Maturity Date”). The Company may not redeem
the MCN at its option while the holder of the MCN has the
right to convert their MCN into shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share at any time during the
issue date to the Maturity Date, and the MCN is freely
transferrable by the holder of the MCN provided that they
may not be transferred to any connected person of the
Company without written consent of the Company and
compliance of any applicable Listing Rules. Any outstanding
MCN at the Maturity Date will automatically convert to
shares of the Company.
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20.

MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The summarised information of the MCN is set out as
follows:

20 October 2015
Maturity date 19 October 2020
Original principal amount HK$2,400,000,000
Coupon rate 0%
Conversion price per ordinary share HK$0.2

Issuance date

Further details regarding the principal terms and conditions
of the MCN are contained in the circular of the Company
dated 29 September 2015.

The MCN was classified under equity and no present value of
the fixed interest payment was represented during the life of
the MCN, therefore, no effective interest for the financial
liability element being calculated. The acquisition of the Katar
Global Group was completed on 20 October 2015 and on the
completion date, the fair value of the MCN was
HK$2,341,896,000, based on valuation performed by BMI
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuer.

During the vyear, the MCN with a nominal value of
HK$217,600,000 was converted into 1,088,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of
HK$0.2 per share. Immediately after the conversion, the
outstanding principal amount of the MCN amounted to
HK$2,182,400,000, with its fair value of HK$2,129,564,000
was included in equity component of convertible notes as
at 31 December 2016.

20.

RFFBEEEZERARDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE E s

31 December 2016
BE-_Z—XF+-_A=+t—HILEE

R H R RREE )

BEIERRERECEMB RSN T

#®17H —E-—RF+A=+H
Elp=ip= —E_EF+A+ 1A
R & %8 2,400,000,000% 7T

EHEB R 0%
FREBRERE 0.2/8 7T

BRGRHMEATRREREBRKXRGHZ
E—THBHEREARRBHR R/ -_FT—0F
NAZTABRZ@EK -

B MREEENERE T XER
SRR IR R FE A 2 ERN SR
2HRE RABFESREELIZE
BRAE - WREINERKEE -FER-ZF
—hFETAZtTHZEKR REBILASER
HEMPMBRFEBRARETZEE
BT RREER EREMZAFER
2,341,896,00078 7T °

RER - E{E217,600,000/8 T 2 58 &I 0]
BMRERECRERETR2BLERA
1,088,000,000 R N AR E B - B
% BEMITRBREBRCARAEELASEAR
2,182,400,0008 L MER =T — R F+
ZA=+—B2Z22¥1E2,129,564,0007% T
EffAT R ER =D o
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21.

22.

DEFERRED TAXATION 21. EERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FRELEHREBEBEE 2EHWMT
as follows:

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries
WEMBARELE
ZRAFEAE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—RF—H—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 26) W B8 I 1B 2 B) (B 72 26) 304
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R_-_ZT—HF+_A=+—8xX

—E—-XR§¥—H—H 304

Deferred tax credited to the statement of FAFFABRZR ZEERIE (M 79)
profit or loss during the year (note 9) (226)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZEB—-—RF+-A=+—H 78

The Group has tax losses of HK$5,523,000 (2015:
HK$4,299,000) that are available for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of
these losses as the utilisation of which is uncertain.

A [E A A 185,523,000 T(ZF —
FF 4,299,000 L) A BRIKEELEE
BRARAIZARK N - ARE LB TESHAE
N BMBERZEEERERELHEE
@ o

SHARE CAPITAL 22. A
2016 2015
—E-ARE —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8t FHE T
Authorised: EE
400,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 400,000,000,000 % & A%
each M 1{E0.0017 7t 2 ix 15 400,000 400,000

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report
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23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR EE E s

31 December 2016

HE-_FT-XE+-_A=+—HBILFE
SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 22. A& (&)
Number Share
of shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
2R
R#HEE BREx  ROEER @ct
‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T’ FTHEL THEL THET
Issued and fully paid: DRETRAR:
At 31 December 2014, RZZE-mNE+=-A=+—-8"
1 January 2015 and “Z-hF-A-HR
31 December 2015 —E-hFETZA=+—H 2,782,102 2,782 721,226 724,008
Shares issued upon conversion R I AR R RIEEE R ELT
of the MCN (note/ Rt (#t22) 1,088,000 1,088 211,244 212,332
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—R"E+=ZA=+—H 3,870,102 3,870 932,470 936,340

Note: During the year, 1,088,000,000 shares were issued to Allied Summit
Inc., a controlling shareholder of the Company, upon exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the MCN at a conversion price of
HK$0.2 per share (note 20). The difference of HK$211,244,000
between nominal value of the ordinary shares issued and the then
aggregate carrying amount of the equity component of the MCN at
the date of conversion was transferred to the Company’'s share

premium account.

Afat: FR - B SRR =R AT e
BREER0.2B T EITE (M it20) - ARBIHE
7 B B B Allied Summit Inc. 17
1,088,000,000/% & {5 - B & 1T %@ KR EE &
BHMARAREEEES SN ERASAZER
%@%&iZF&E’J%%ﬁzﬂ 244,000 LD #EEE AN
Al EER -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 23. BREE

During the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2012 RZE-—ZFNATZARTZREASF
(the “AGM"), the shareholders of the Company duly Ag(BRRBEXE) L AARKREIE
approved the relevant resolutions to adopt a new share NHERBRBER - AN EREE S
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) by ((FFEREE] - Tx%éﬁ?@ﬁ%%ﬁg%%
authorising the directors to allot and issue up to the 10 BB RERBETARAZEEITRAR

percent of the issued share capital of the Company under
the New Share Option Scheme. The directors or an
authorised committee were authorised, at their/its absolute
discretion, to grant options to any person, subjected to the
selection criteria, being an employee, officer, agent,
consultant or representative of the Group, including any
executive or non-executive directors, in order to provide

%10% ° i%‘ﬂ%‘x%?%@ﬁ&% A
ERNERERESERTMALRHLE
Pt ZEALTARAEEES  SEB
g REA BRAKKK (BEITAAITH
FWTESR) EEMARARMEBAE
@Zﬁﬁb jt%zliy%@—ﬁ”%ﬁzli%@ﬁ
R E IR o $E#J“‘%ﬁﬁ%

incentives to the guarantee to contribute to the Group and Hx 3 ;d’%J ESSRREMBR
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and AHASEERELEEERM AW H
attract resources that were valuable to the Group. Under /\i&ﬁ,ﬁﬁ%% cRBERHESSET
the New Share Option Scheme, the Company might grant BABER T && S 8 :

options to any participant, in the absolute discretion of the Z2BWAEREER )E ﬁ’ﬁé_é WExR
Board, who had made valuable contribution to the business Fﬁiﬁﬂxf’ﬁ% miE:

of the Group. The subscription price would be a price
determined by the Board and at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(c) the nominal value of the shares.

RFFBEEEZERARDA

f %EIE ﬁﬁIFﬁtEl
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23.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Upon the completion of the acquisition of 30% equity
interest in Profit Grand Group by Century Praise Limited, a
100% wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 12 April
2012, an option had been conditionally granted by the
Company to each of (China Longjiang Forest Industry
(Group) General Corporation®) (FEIZE T HRM T (£H)
#27]) ("Longjiang Forest Industry”) and Jia Run
Investments Limited (“Jia Run”) to subscribe for not more
than 49,517,009 shares of the Company after the proposed
share consolidation became effective on 20 March 2012
(equivalent to 6,189,626 shares of the Company after the
proposed share consolidation becoming effective on 10
September 2012) (the “Longjiang Option” and the “Agent
Option” respectively). After the rights issue during the year
ended 31 December 2012, the number of shares could be
subscribed became 12,936,318 as at 31 December 2012.
After the share consolidation and the right issue, became
effective, the number of shares could be subscribed
became 6,287,049 as at 31 December 2014. The Longjiang
Option and Agent Option were granted to Longjiang Forest
Industry and Jia Run respectively for the establishment of a
strategic alliance between the Company and Longjiang
Forest Industry with respect to the development and
management of the forest acquired under the acquisition of
30% equity interest in the Profit Grand Group with the
assistance of Jia Run as an agent. The Agent Option and
Longjiang Option was lapsed on 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2015, respectively, and no other share options
had been granted or exercised during the year ended 31
December 2015.

& The English name of this company represents management's best
effort to translate the Chinese name of this company, as no English
name has been registered.
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R-ZE——FNA+-—_BARF 22 &M
BRARHEAER AR TSR KBHNERZ
30% % #E % - AR R D B A B BE T & AR
T¥(&EE) BRI (EIFMIEDRE
BIREERAR (B8] AIEHFREEE -
UDRREINEBNR_E——F=ZA_+
B 3% 1) A 6t 4 5% 249,517,009 % A
REIRHBER=ZZE—Z=ZFNLATHER
% 17 & 5 4 W 1% 26,189,626 L AR &) i 19
(PR AEIEIHEIRIRESRE]D - #H=E
—T——F+-_A=t+—HILFEHKE
R_E——F+_A=+—HAHtRE>
B 15 2 H £12,936,318% - M 7 & HF &
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23.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The movements of the share options of the Company

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_T

A 75 2k I R

31 December 2016

—RNE+ZA=+—HILFE

23. BRETE(H)

WE-F-EF+-A=+—HILERE

during the year ended 31 December 2015 were as follows: ANrEREZSESHIAT:
Option type Outstanding at Adjustment Adjustment Outstanding at
1 January Granted due to share due to Lapsed 31 December
2015 during 2015 consolidation right issue during 2015 2015
HEER R-ZE-HF R=ZB-1F
—HA—H R=Z2-I1F ER % & 6 Hitlk R-FT-1F +-A=+-H
R AT & i 15 38 & M 1E 38 & P34 18 R AT 68
Other eligible persons
HthaBRAT
Longjiang Forest Industry Longjiang Option 6,287,049 - N/A N/A 6,287,049 -
BIRMIE BT HA T i A T iE A
Weighted average exercise price HK$8 = N/A N/A HK$8 =
MEFHITEE 87 T T i A T iE A 8% T
Details of specific categories of options were as follows: BEBEABAEZFBOT:
2015
Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price
—E-AHEF
B FEAH TS TEE
Longjiang Option 12 April 2012 Upon the grant of For 1 year but no later than N/A
Forestry Clearance 31 December 2015
Authority
BE T Hi 4 —E——F X AR AR —F - EBTMER-ZT—NLF 38 A
MA+=H BB ER +=—A=+—H

Share option expenses of HK$1,367,000 had been included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2012. It gave rise to a share option
reserve. No liabilities were recognised due to these equity-

settled share option transactions.

The fair values of Longjiang Option and Agent Option
determined at the date of grant using the Monte Carlo
simulation method were HK$1,339,000 and HK$28,000

respectively.

AFAFBEEEZERAR QA

AR 1,367,000 TEV AEHE-Z
——E+ - A=+—-BItFEBzKREEFHF
*x AMEEA—HEREGRH LERZ
ERBEEERERIMERTAAE -

BEIHERREHEARDBHUREF
BEREFET 2AFED R AE1,339,000
7 7T 28,0007 7T °

ZE-XREFR
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23.

24.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As the fair value of the services received could not be
estimated reliably by the Company, the fair value of service
received from Longjiang Forest Industry and Jia Run was
measured indirectly by reference to the fair value of the
option granted.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
values of share options at the grant date:

23.

BRERE W

R PTIRCEUBR 75 2 &

EEMEHE -

EREERELA
ZZDT-

FEEZEHARF A
S E - MmBEIAMRIE RZBEAK
BREzAFELSERELBEZ AT

Mz A FEMBRR

=L

Longjiang Option

BETHIRE
Grant date B 12 April 2012 ZZE—Z—FWA+=H
Share price 1% 1 & 1% HK$0.083 0.083/ 7T
Initial exercise price MEITEE HK$0.25 to HK$0.5 0.25B7TE0.5/8 7T
Expected option period T8 HA HA 4 < HA 1.723 years 17234
Expected volatility T8 HA % & 205.924%
Risk-free interest rate = e F X 0.207%
The Monte Carlo simulation method had been used in BREATFTEDFEARE REEREIRE
computing the fair value of the share options based on the E&ER ququit?%tH o A A B RBH
directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and ZEPN R EHETIRE A TFEERE
assumptions might result in changes in fair value of the E
Longjiang Option.
RESERVES 24, f#fE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements AEERAFELBAFE HESREKL
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the HESHRPBRRFECOB LR EERED
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 69 of %iw

the financial statements.

The Group's PRC statutory reserve represents a portion of
the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which are established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve fund which are
restricted as to use.
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25. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 25.
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

BEEAFEREZE2HRIESR
B X B

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non- BAEERFIERER 2 AEEHNE QR

controlling interests are set out below: BT
2016 2015
—E-RE ZE—HF
Percentage of equity interest held by FZEREERFEZ
non-controlling interests: R#EBD L
Profit Grand Group (disposed during the year) HAEBR(RFALE) N/A 7 3E A 70%
Cornerstone Securities Limited (disposed EREFBRAF
during the year) (RFEREE) N/A T8 F 20%
Katar Global Group MERKE E 4% 4%
2016 2015
—E-ARf —T-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAET
(Loss)/profit for the year allocated to DT IEERER 2
non-controlling interests: FR(BER),CEH:
Profit Grand Group T F £ E (324) (1,624)
Cornerstone Securities Limited ERBSFBRRQA (901) (72)
Katar Global Group MERREE 12,382 140
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RREBHEERER 2
interests at the reporting dates: E
Profit Grand Group I & = = (19)
Cornerstone Securities Limited EREHFBRAF = 1,837
Katar Global Group MERKEE 17,495 5,796

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR
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25. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 25. BEERFEEREZ 2D HESR
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS B B & B (48)
(Continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TERBM FAWBAT ZHBEREE -
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts BEZeBANBRTMER RN R ALY HE
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B2 &8
Cornerstone
Profit Grand Securities Katar Global
Group Limited Group
ERESH MERR
EANEE ERAF £8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET
2016: ZE-RF:
Revenue g - 263 499,174
Total expenses ¥ e (462) (4,770) (189,624)
(Loss)/profit for the period/year B/ FR(E8),/ % (462) (4,507) 309,550
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRE2EGE) hEEHE
for the year (5) (4,507) 292,617
Current assets TEBEE N/A 7 A N/A 7 A 489,033
Non-current assets FERBEE N/A i A N/A i A 6,473
Current liabilities mEAE N/A FiE A N/A FiE B (58,022)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE N/A 7 B N/A 73 A (78)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating REZE&(BE)/ELvHES
activities mEFE = (5,067) 127,689
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing & EE (BH) /E4L2BEE
activities mMEFE = (1,056) 47,264
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEHELEZBRESRE2FE = 5,000 -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash R4 RBLZEEWOR L),/
equivalents #2005 R = (1,123) 174,953
2015: —E-hF:
Revenue Iz - - 34,740
Total expenses X A% (2,320) (361) (31,248)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER), & F (2,320) (361) 3,492
Total comprehensive loss for the year FALAEBELRE (229) (361) (108)
Current assets mENEE - 9,195 188,168
Non-current assets FERBEE = - 20,990
Current liabilities Ve =R (27) (10) (64,258)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = = =

Net cash flows (used in)/from operating XL EFE(FER),/ E4E2RHE

activities 2 = (1,440) 34,321
Net cash flows used in investing activites R & EEHFEA 2R LR EFHE = = (81)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEHEL v B4R F5E = 8,900 -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R & MIR & S B IE N HE = 7,460 34,240
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE E s

31 December 2016

BE-T-AFt-A=t-BLFE
BUSINESS COMBINATION 26. K56
In 2015, the Group acquired a 96% equity interest of the RZZE—RF  AEEMEHFKRBEMNER
Katar Global Group from the Vendor at the consideration of HEE6% M HE - K& %&2,400,000,000%
HK$2,400,000,000. The Katar Global Group were engaged Lo MERREENERHERERERAE
in the provision of services in relation to the promotion and BAREFLEHEBERY - WEDAEEE
application of the internet financing platform. The AREFRAEBEFECRB 22— HD - FH
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to WEHFBEERARTEPR T —RF
expand its money lending platform in the PRC. Details of NAZTNBZBE - RETHAZE TR
the acquisition were set out in the Company's circular |$—H‘%H FERFAZN - AR GER B
dated 29 September 2015. The consideration was in form REB E-—FFBHRNY B REM T
of issuance of MCN and further details of the MCN were 20 °
included in note 20 to the financial statements.
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the MERBKEERKERAZAZRINEER
Katar Global Group as at the date of acquisition were as BEZAFENT:
follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
RbEBEREOER
AN |
Notes HK$000
B it FET
Plant and equipment R = & &% 12 18,402
Cash and bank balances BRe RIBITHEH 59,221
Trade and other receivables & U BR 3R K E b i W SR IB 131,961
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 41,672
Tax payables FE 5 i 18 (22,564)
Other payables and accruals HthENRBERETER (63,359)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE 21 (304)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAFEFZE 20 #5
wmEEFE 165,029
Non-controlling interests I 17 % = (5,796)
159,233
Goodwill on acquisition WEELEZ2EE 13 2,182,663
Satisfied by MCN LA SR Bl M mT 32 I8 AR S+ 20 2,341,896
AFEBEIERERQT —Z—AEFH
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26.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 26. ¥ 56t ®)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$3,295,000 for & E gk 2 R E A R 5K AR3,295,000
this acquisition. These transaction costs had been expensed BIL - ZERXHGK ALK HMFTALGE
and were included in administrative expenses in the BaR1THRAX -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Analysis of cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the FRWENERREEZHSRES TN
Katar Global Group was as follows: ™
HK$’000
FBT
Cash consideration ReENRE -
Cash and bank balances R e RIRITHE & 59,221

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included sTAREEZBELA RS REZR

in cash flows from investing activities e hBEeFEYRAFEE 59,221
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in  FTAREEHELE 2R RE 2 W

cash flows from operating activities R N (3,295)

55,926

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 20 BEARAEA-—ZE—FRFERA-_T+HZEE
May 2015, the Vendor irrevocably and unconditionally B B TARE R EEEEADTE
guarantees to the Company that the audited consolidated IR mMEBRERREE T —AAF
profit before tax of the Katar Global Group (excluding any E—E—XNE+-_A=+—HIEELKE
extraordinary items) for each of the years ended 31 TREZEABRBI SN (B EEMIE
December 2015 and 2016 shall not be less than the KEUER) A LPNEERBHAE(E
amount set opposite to the relevant guaranteed periods as EATEIRTELAAFESESE(ZBAR
defined in the table below (each the “Guaranteed Profit"): HEEF ) ¢

Guaranteed Period
REHB

Guaranteed Profit

R 5% 75 R

1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
—E-HF¥—A-—HE_ZT—HE+_A=+—8
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016
—E-RE-A-BEE-—XRE+ZA=+—H

HK$100,000,000
100,000,000 7T
HK$350,000,000
350,000,0007% 7T
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26.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

If the aggregate actual audited consolidated profit before tax
of the Group (excluding any extraordinary items) (the
“Actual Profit”) for any of the guaranteed periods shall be
less than the relevant Guaranteed Profit, the Consideration
shall be reduced according to the following formula:

= (Guaranteed Profit — Actual Profit) x 5.3333

whereas A is the amount of reduction (“Reduction
Amount”) to be made to the Consideration. Where the
Actual Profit is negative, it shall be deemed to be zero. For
the avoidance of doubt, depending on the Actual Profit, two
reductions may be made to the Consideration and no
adjustment will be made to the Consideration if the Actual
Profit is more than the Guaranteed Profit. The total
maximum amount of the Reduction Amount shall be the
Consideration.

Since the acquisition, the Katar Global Group contributed
HK$34,740,000 to the Group's revenue and profit of
HK$3,492,000 to the consolidated loss of the year ended
31 December 2015.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of the Group
and the loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 would had been HK$355,066,000 and HK$66,233,000
respectively.
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—ANEF+ZA=+—HLEFE

HEZ

¥XE6tm®

MAEBMNEARBEHE EREBRE
ABRBMAEFAE(ReETMELS
TEE)(TEEEA D LRIEBERERF - &
BAEREATAR IR :

A= (REEF - BB RF) x 5.3333
MARKERENR 2B (HNRESE] -
WEREFHRABE AleWwRAT - A
AR STER RN - ATEHNRE#
TRXIRE - MWE R &fBBRE R
AT EHREETARZ - M8
E—I—J,L%Eﬁ'”’tfg °

BRER  NMERBKEEREBEEZE-_E—1
FH+-_A=Z+—HLEFERAAEBRKZE
B£34,740,0005% 7T & [A) 47 & &5 18 75 2 55
3,492,000 7T °

WRBE-_T-—AF+-_A=1+—HI#F
VEWLH o -BE_T-—HFT+_A
St HLEFEARBRKGERAKEER
5 Bl 7%355,066,000% 7T, 1266,233,000 7%
JT °

TE-REFR
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27. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

On 14 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire 100% equity interest in Beijing Ling Sheng Tian Xia
Technology Limited* (“Ling Sheng”). Ling Sheng planned to
engage in an internet financing platform in the PRC, but at
the time of acquisition, Ling Sheng did not have any
employees and had not actively engaged in internet
financing business. In the opinion of the directors, the
acquisition of Ling Sheng does not constitute a business
combination but an acquisition of assets and liabilities. The
carrying amounts of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Ling Sheng as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

# The English name of this company represents management's best
effort to translate the Chinese name of this company, as no English
name has been registered.

27.

WREERAR

R-ZZE—RNE—A+HTA AEFHEE—F
BYUE=-FFLEE RS AREILRE
BATREERARTERE] Z100% %
e ERFENTENEEHBREFTS
B MRARFETRER  ERILE
THEE NMEREG2HEEBHEAMEZE
B oEERANBERETER —BER
GO HEK—EHEERBEKRE - R
ZABREERAERKERR  EE®
HE

¢ HRZARYEELREXEE  MZEAXEE
REBERZASNATNEAHWBEMRS -

HK$'000
FHET

Net assets acquired: Frik & EFE:
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHER 487
Other receivables H fih j& Y 5k 18 104
Other payables H &~ 3B (591)

Total identifiable net assets acquired

BRI RFEERE -

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
Ling Sheng is as follows:

ERRBERZHEERESTAOT

2016

e

HK$'000

FHET

Consideration RE -

Cash and bank balances acquired Frik IR RIRTTA# 487
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included st AR EEFB 2R ETREZH S R

in cash flows from investing activities REFBEMRAFE 487

Pacific Plywood Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report
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28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. HEMKB AT
2016 2015
—E-RFE —_T-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b &7 FTHERT FHET
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of: BEHEZ(AE) BEFE:

Plant and equipment =& & 2 603 -

Goodwill kS 13 = -

Intangible assets EREE 14 1,694 -

Other long term assets EmEEEE 205 -

Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE & 6,611 810

Prepayments and other receivables TE A RRIE R E A B YR IR 5,997 -

Cash held on behalf of brokerage RELELEEFPEFEZ

clients e 12,820 -

Account payable to brokerage clients EREREPHIE (12,820) -

Other payables and accruals B ERRIE R EFTE R (339,733) (8)

Non-controlling interests IE 12 B 2= (1,920) -

(326,543) 802
Exchange fluctuation reserves & 5K BB (1,446) -
Other payables assigned B8k 2 EAth JE I 3R 336,288 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEWBRAR 2 W 5 16,201 198
24,500 1,000

Satisfied by: AT 52 47 -

Cash b 24,500 1,000
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EHETEMBRAZRERBECEEY 2
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MAFELOMWOT

2016 2015

—E-RE Z—ZE-IfF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FET

Cash consideration RENRE 24,500 1,000

Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHEZHES MRITEH (6,611) (810)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ERLENBRAR S KA

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries S EEBYRAFE 17,889 190

AEFEZEEZERERAR —ZE—AEFW
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29.

30.

31.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 29. REHEZH
The Group leases certain of its office properties under REBRBEEHELXHEEETHAE
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are M -MEHELEREZFHENT—=
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years (2015: =F(ZE—RF:—ERF)o
one to five years).
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum RZE—REF+-_A=+—H XEER
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases BTAORECEHEZHERERENRE
falling due as follows: BEZEABBRINT
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F A 9,315 21,058
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERTF
(BREEEMF) 3,054 11,067
12,369 32,125
COMMITMENTS 30. &
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have R4S B R - AN 5 B 30 A fr] B KB AR
any significant capital commitments. s °
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALIRS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

(@)  Transactions with related parties:

(i) During the year, 1,088,000,000 shares were
issued to Allied Summit Inc., the controlling
shareholder of the Company, upon exercise of
the conversion rights attaching to the MCN at a
conversion price of HK$0.2 per share. Further
details of which are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 26 May 2016 and note 22
to the financial statements.

(i) In 2015, the Group acquired the Katar Global
Group from Allied Summit Inc., the controlling
shareholder of the Company, at a consideration
of HK$2,400,000,000, based on a business
valuation performed by the directors of the
Company. Further details of the transaction are
included in notes 20 and 26 to the financial
statements.
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BAMBREREMBOFR 2RXFI - K
SERFRNEMBEATETUTIRS:

(a) HEABALTETZIXRS:

()  FA RNRBRERGIMEARRE
1% PR HR B AR T T T (R A TR R AR (B
F%0.2%8 7T A E 5 A% A% 2R Allied
Summit Inc.2771,088,000,000% A%
- E—FFBEARARFH
HA—_T—-—R"FAA-_TRH
ZRERFBERRMFE22

iy MZZE—RF BEAQXRE
ERMENTZEBGEE ~5H
A A A F 2 R B B Allied
Summit Inc. W B H0 2 IR BR &
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ME-ZT-~ET-A=+-ALFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 1. BEAXIXRZ®E)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the b) AEHEEXEEBEABZMIE:
Group:
In the opinion of the directors, the directors and chief BEEZRR BEERITHAEHERAEE
executive represented the key management personnel FEBBAE  BEAFBHNTBE®
of the Group and details are included in note 7 to the R EET o
financial statements.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. ZERESz2EMTITA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREMASENSMITACEESED
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as Nk
follows:
2016 —E-RE
Available-
Loans and for-sale
Financial assets receivables investments Total
cRMEE BERRERRE AHEERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investments 7]t i & & & — 718,465 718,465
Loan and interest receivables & & X & & & 878,079 = 878,079
Trade receivables FE UL BR K 670 — 670
Deposits b g 2,845 - 2,845
Other receivables EH fth fE 5k 1E 590 — 590
Cash and cash equivalents IR&EMREZFEDY 348,357 - 348,357
1,230,541 718,465 1,949,006
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
REBHEBAGTE
cRAE e B =R
HK$'000
FET
Other payables H b JE 7 50 IR 9,657

AFPFEXEERERAR —T-RFFH
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32. ZEHESszERIAWE
(Continued)
2015 —E-HF
Available-
Loans and for-sale

Financial assets receivables investments Total
SREE B3R & W sk E At HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT
Available-for-sale investments 7] it i & &% & - 1,168,760 1,168,760
Loan and interest receivables & U B & & & & 555,180 - 555,180
Trade receivables & W BR 3R 40,731 - 40,731
Deposits £ 5,176 - 5,176
Other receivables H fh fE Uk 3k 18 4,567 - 4,567
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 197,059 - 197,059
802,713 1,168,760 1,971,473
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost
HEEKAGE
cRBE ZEmAaE
HK$'000
FAET
Other payables H b JE T ;IR 10,783
Receipt in advance 78 Uk 3% 8 64
10,847
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33.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, loan and interest receivables, available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables and other
payables approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The valuation requires the directors to
make estimates about the expected future cash flows
including expected future dividends and proceeds on
subsequent disposal of the shares. The directors believe
that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in
fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.
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33. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 33. €@ ITAZAFERATFEL

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)

Fair value hierarchy AN FEER B

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TEREAAESESHITAEZAFETER
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: Bl

Assets measured at fair value: EATEFECZEE:

Fair value measurement using

RATIHGABBZAVEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

As at 31 December 2016 markets inputs inputs

RWERT S EAATBE EXTUBER

RZE-XRE+ZRA=+—H HE WAHE WA BE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—-%%) (B=%8) (F=ZEHR) ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FTHET FHET FTHERT

Available-for-sale investments:  A[{ff K& &

Equity investments A% & 718,465 - - 718,465
718,465 = = 718,465

Fair value measurement using

RATHBARBLRAVFEFTE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
As at 31 December 2015 markets inputs inputs
W& BT 5 BERABE EATAEX
R-ZZE-RAE+-A=+—H WE WA BB W ABE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—%H) (FZ%H) (B=FH) B Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAET FET TAET
Available-for-sale investments: Al HEHKE :
Equity investments A& E 1,127,088 = - 1,127,088
1,127,088 = - 1,127,088
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at REERZE—R"FRZFE—HF+=A
fair value as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. T+ HYEAWZATEFEZSRE
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34.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for the financial assets
(2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments are used to raise
finance for the Group’'s operations and investments. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as loan and interest receivables, trade receivables and other
payables which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, equity price risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing financial assets. Interest-bearing financial assets are
the interest on loan receivables and deposit with banks.
Interests on deposits with banks based on deposit rates
offered by bank while interests on loan receivables are
based on fixed rates. Therefore, changes in interest rate
would not affect the profit or loss of the Group.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from available-
for-sale investments (note 75) as at 31 December 2016 and
2015. The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. 8RR EEBEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Equity price risk (Continued) RAEE R (E)

TXDTABAHRGAEFAREOIRE
HRZRPAEERRAERK ZBMER

The market equity index for the following stock exchange,
at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the

year to the end of the reporting period, and their respective UEREEEBRFAZ &AM K&K :
highest and lowest points during the year were as follows:
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2016 2016 2015 2015
ZE—-XEF —E-RE = — R F E— R4
+=ZA=+-—H 5/ +t—A=+—A8 =K
Hong Kong - BB -
Hang Seng Index BAEEH 22,000 24,099/18,319 21,914 28,442/20,556
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every TRETRBRAKREZ A TEE% (ZF—

hE 5% BB IHRE(FFAEMER
MBETERRFACTARBEE)  JIIRH

5% (2015: 5%) change in the fair values of the equity
investments, with all other variables held constant and

before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts EHRZEEEAE
at the end of the reporting period.
Carrying Increase/
amount of decrease Increase/
equity in profit decrease
instruments before tax in equity
RATRZ  BBHER R
REEE ®m, w2 g, wW D
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T FET
2016 ZE-RE
Investments listed in: RATHF ER2&E
Hong Kong - BE -
Available-for-sale A& 718,465 - 35,923
2015 —T—AF
Investments listed in: RATH A EmZEE
Hong Kong - BB -
Available-for-sale e 1,127,088 = 56,354
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to the loan, interest and
trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group has established policies and systems for monitoring
and control of credit risk. The management has delegated
different divisions responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring processes to
ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, management reviews the recoverable
amounts of loan, interest and trade receivables individually
or collectively at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of those
instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 0% (2015: 0%) and 31%
(2015: 20%) of the Group's loan, interest and trade
receivables were due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers, respectively. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from these receivables are disclosed in
notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows are the general sources of
funds to finance the operations of the Group. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure it
has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding
by keeping committed credit lines available and sufficient
bank deposits to meet its short term cash requirements.
The Group’s liquidity risk management includes diversifying
the funding sources.
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34.

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

34.

MBRREREEERBER#)

REBEEERE(E)
AEBEZANAMBAFTARE D 2R AE
RBERRZBBABERDT -

2016 2015
—E—-XRF —E—hF
On demand or within one year

BERIN-—FA

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FH& T

Other payables E fth & 3R 9,657 10,783
Receipt in advance T U IR - 64
9,657 10,847

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
cash and cash equivalents and total equity comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associate with each class of capital,
and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group's capital
structure.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 February 2017, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with a borrower (the “Borrower”), an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group has
agreed to provide loan with principal amount of up to
HK$6,500,000 to the Borrower in accordance with the
terms thereunder. Prior to 2 February 2017, the Group
provided the previous loan facilities to the Borrower and its
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) with loan
principal amounts of HK$47,000,000 in aggregate. Further
details of which are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 2 February 2017.
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. AR Z B BAR R H=K

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the KRR BERR B BEMRRAFRER D
Company at the end of reporting period is as follows: N
2016 2015
S S
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 T T35 7T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Plant and equipment % B K& 679 519
Investments in subsidiaries RWBRARIZEE 2,317,519 2,317,519
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 606,267 945,946
Total non-current assets JEREEEMRE 2,924,465 3,263,984
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables E b e I 3k 18 2,672 2,940
Due from subsidiaries & U BT B A R 3R IB 611,530 767,973
Tax recoverable A] U [ Fi 18 188 626
Cash and bank balances B& KIRITHE & 22,128 7,460
Total current assets MEEE®E 636,518 778,999
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H th & 0B K
EEtE& R 2,491 4,634
Due to subsidiaries L E NG 201,136 29,420
Total current liabilities mBBEEE 203,627 34,054
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 432,891 744,945
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZLERABAR 3,357,356 4,008,929
EQUITY FE &
Share capital [N 3,870 2,782
Reserves (note) i & (K7 2%) 3,353,486 4,006,147
Total equity T B 5 3,357,356 4,008,929
Huang Chuan Fu Liang Jian Hua
EEE REE
Director Director
EE EE

AFHFEEEZERBRAR —Z-—RFFHR
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. AATZBM B MR RAER (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B i -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRRz @EEBRENT:
Available-
for-sale Equity
Share Share  investments component of
premium option revaluation  Contributed convertible Accumulated
account reserve reserve surplus notes losses Total
& 1 BRE THHEERE TRREEZ
i B R i EfifkE BARH BHE5 Rit BB @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FAET AT TR FAET FAT
At 1 January 2015 R-E-RAF—A—H 721,226 1,367 494,490 277,102 - (182,614) 1,311,671
Profit for the year FRmEFl - - - - - 4,914 4,914
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FRE {2 Tz,
for the year: (B#) :
Available-for-sale investments: AHHERE:
- Change in fair value -RTEEED - - 350,645 - - - 350,645
- Reclassification -ENDERE
adjustment - - (2,879) - - - (2,879)
Total comprehensive income FR2EREAE
for the year - - 347,766 - - 4,914 352,680
Issue of mandatory convertible BRHEARRER
notes (note 20) (B 20) - - - - 2,341,896 - 2,341,896
Transfer of share option reserve R B IR 52 W 3 & m B
upon the forfeiture or expiry of BRERERS
share options - (1,367) - - - 1,367 -
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-H%F
1 January 2016 +-A=+-Bk
N e e = 721,226 = 842,256 277,102 2,341,896 (176,333) 4,006,147
Loss for the year FRER = = = - - (313,161) (313,161)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FREMZE(ER)/
income for the year: ez -
Available-for-sale investments: AREERE:
- Change in fair value -5 = = (340,012) - - - (340,012)
- Reclassification -ENAEAE
adjustments = = 1,600 = = = 1,600
Total comprehensive loss FRNE2EFBEEE
for the year - - (338,412) - - (313,161) (651,573)
Issue of new shares upon Rt ARk E &
conversion of the mandatory EERBERITHRD
convertible notes 211,244 = = = (212,332) = (1,088)
At 31 December 2016 E@:?*_\E
+-A=+-—H 932,470 = 503,844 277,102 2,129,564 (489,494) 3,353,486
37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. #t/EB B &K

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2017.
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